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CENTRAL MICHIGAN
UNIVERSITY

August, 2012
REPORT FROM THE VICE PRESIDENT FOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Iam pleased to share the financial report for Central Michigan University for the year ended June 30, 2012.

For nearly 120 years, Central Michigan University has remained focused on student success and improving the
overall quality of life of citizens throughout the state, nation and world, CMU remains a partner with the State
of Michigan in being a responsible steward of taxpayer dollars while providing access to exceptional
educational experiences that advance the personal and professional goals of the state’s citizenry.

Central Michigan University is one of the nation’s 100 largest public universities and the fourth largest in
Michigan with an enrollment of more than 28,000 students and nearly 200,000 alumni. Our impressive breadth
of more than 400 academic programs at the bachelor’s, master’s, specialist and doctoral levels include
nationally recognized programs in physical therapy, entrepreneurship, journalism, music, audiology, teacher
education, psychology and physician assistant. CMU also has established a College of Medicine, which will
welcome its inaugural class in the summer of 2013.

Despite difficult economic times, Ceniral Michigan University continues to deliver a positive student learning
experience. From our main campus in Mount Pleasant to more than 50 off-campus centers throughout the U.S.,
Canada and Mexico, or via our online courses, CMU continues to expand and enhance educational

opporiunities with a primary focus on student success.

Once again, Central Michigan University continues its conservative but stable financial condition, with much
credit due to more than 2,500 valued and hardworking faculty and staff. Demanding economic times not only
have challenged our bottom line, but also have resulted in CMU implementing steps to ensure students continue
to gain a first-rate education. We constantly examine avenues to reduce costs and increase energy efficiency,
while concentrating our efforts on sustainability. We are focused on careful stewardship of university resources
and are strategic when making investments in capital facilities and programs. Our actions are designed to
provide Michigan with a globally competitive learning environment that encourages diversity, research, service
and leadership. '

As we implement the 2013 financial plan and plan for the coming decade, we remain flexible in meeting
students’ evolving needs, while fully aware of the economic times in which we live. Through it all, Central
Michigan University will advance a long-established tradition of academic excellence, integrity, research and

creative activity.

Sincerely,

T Pt 65wt

David A, Burdette
Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services

s Mount Pleasant, Michigan 48859
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Central Michigan University

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Central Michigan University (the university) annual financial report presenis a
discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the university for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, with selected comparative information for the years ended June 30, 2011, and 2010. This
discussion has been prepared by management along with the financial statements and related note
disclosures and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the financial
statements and notes. The discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current activities, resuiting
changes and currently known facts. The financial statements, notes and this discussion are the

responsibility of management.

REPORTING ENTITY

Central Michigan University is an institution of higher education and is considered to be a component unit
of the State of Michigan. The financial reporting entity consists of the university and other organizations
for which the university is financially accountable.

Under the provision of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, Ceniral Michigan University College of Business Administration
Foundation (CBAF) and the Central Michigan University Foundation have been determined to be
component units. Their activity has been blended into the university's financial statements. CBAF was
tormed in fiscal year 2011; therefore, no activily is included in the June 30, 2010 financial statements.

Under the same GASB Statement No. 61, Central Health Advancement Solutions (CHAS), has been
determined to be a major component unit. Accordingly, CHAS is discretely presented in the university's
financial statements. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for information regarding these
component units and other affiliated entities.

FACTORS IMPACTING FUTURE PERIODS

Central Michigan University, while facing significant challenges from declining state appropriations, is
committed to keeping higher education affordable and accessible to students and families. The university
continues to expand programs, underfake new Initiatives and meet its core mission and ongoing
operating needs by working smartly and diligently to manage finances. A continued defunding of higher
education and lack of commitment by the State of Michigan along with a declining population in the high
school cohort in Michigan will have an adverse effect on the university’s ability to meet its goals. The
level of enrollment, state support, ‘and potential compensation and benefit increases are major factors
impacting student tuition increases. B

The university’s state appropriations for fiscal year 2012 were $18.2 million below its appropriations of ten
years ago. In fiscal year 2012 state appropriations contributed approximately 20.2% of general
operations revenue not including grant, contract and auxiliary revenues. In fiscal year 2002 state
appropriations contributed approximately 42.8% of general operations revenue. For fiscal year 2013
state approptiations are currently approved at $69.5 million. The state appropriations are approximately
the same amount received in fiscal year 1897.

The university has a required supplemental contribution to Michigan Public School Employees’
Retirement System (MPSERS) for retiree pension and health care benefits that additionally reduces the
appropriations available for operations. The required contribution was $11.3 million for fiscal year 2012
compared to $6.3 million for fiscal year 2002.

The university is committed to preserving academic quality, providing excellent service to our students
and not dramatically increasing tuition for our students and their families. The university is adamant
about holding the line related to fuition increases even though state appropriations have declined over the
past eleven years. Significant efforts are being made to earnestly and comprehensively continue to
achieve operational efficiencies and fto identify and implement additional cost-saving measures.
Recognizing the continued financial chalienges of our students and their families, the university has

nearty doubled the need-based financial aid funding over the past two years, making degrees possible for -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

many students who otherwise could not pursue their dream of higher education. CMU is committed to
continue to address the financial needs of our students and their families.

Operating Budget, Capital Budget and Deferred Maintenance

The university's Board of Trustees approved the operating budget for fiscal year 2013 of $441.9 million
and capital budgets for fiscal year 2013 totaling $40.6 milion. The balanced budget includes increases
for employee compensation and other necessary costs.

The university models a five-year forecast of its revenue and expense budget. This model is significantly
impacted by unpredictable future state appropriations funding, declining levels of Michigan high school
graduates causing potential declining enrollment, and modest increases in salary, bensfits and utilities
cost. These economic factors will put increasing financial pressure on the university. The university
remains steadfast in its commitment to achieve operational efficiencies, implement additional cost-saving
measures where appropriate and increase financial aid for our students. With these economic factors in
sight, the university is continuing its fiscally conservative approach as good stewards of its available
resources.

The approved capital budget for fiscal year 2012-2013 is $40.6 million. The sources of funds available for
capital needs are state capital outlay, bonds, gifts, the parking services operating budget, the residences
and auxiliary services operating budget, the general fund operating budget, certain capital construction
reserves and other miscellaneous funding sources. The internal sources are pooled and distributed
through a fermal approval process. Restricted dollars are maintained separate from the internal sources.

The capital budget includes funding for various projects, based on the university'’s annual review of the
priority needs and requirements for deferred maintenance, technology, renovations and new construction
projacts. This comprehensive review allows for systematic prioritization on an institutional basis. Priorities
are established, based on anticipated future funding, with maintenance related projects having priotity
over new initiatives.

The campus has many deferred maintenance needs as documented in a detailed audit of each building.
Current estimates, adjusted for inflation, of existing deferred maintenance needs for general fund facilities
total $159.6 million as compared to $134.1 in fiscal year 2003. Starting with fiscal year 1999,
approximately $4.5 million dollars per year was dedicated toward addressing these needs. Beginning
with fiscal year 2007, the amount was increased to $5.5 million. In fiscal year 2012, the amount was $5.7
million.

During fiscal year 2012, the university expended approximately $31.9 million on plant related projects.
Funding sources included grant, gift, and other university funds. '

The CMU Promise

Due to financial considerations, the Board of Trustees voted not o extend the CMU Promise to fuiure
incoming students. Beginning in fall 2008, new incoming students, including transferring students, and
those coming off the CMU Promise had to pay the new fall tuition rates with no guarantees related to
future tuition rates. '

The CMU Promise remained in effect for all students enrolled through the summer 2008 semester. The
per-credit hour rates for students registered through the summer 2008 session are guaranteed not to
increase for four years, with a one-year grace period. All formerly mandated fees were rolled into these
tuition rates.

College of Medicine

Over the past fiscal year, the CMU College of Medicine has made significant strides toward the
enrollment of its first class for the fall of 2013, The Liaison Committee on Medical Education granted the
College of Medicine preliminary accreditation in February 2012, completing the third in five steps toward
full accreditation.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

In June of 2012 the application process opened with students applying through the American Association
of Medical Colleges. The College of Medicine estimates receiving at least 2,200 applicants, admitting 60
of those students for its inaugural class. The college will begin recognizing revenue from the secondary
application fees during fiscal year 2013 and tuition revenue in fiscal year 2014.

The college continues its growth with the realignment of University Health Services under its family group
practice branch and with the purchase of its first medical practice in January of 2012, a surgical center
specializing in breast care. The College of Medicine has also increased hospital affiliations across the
state in order to address the clinical education of its students.

Research is not only a high priority for Central Michigan University, but it plays an integral role in the
creation and ongoing support of the College of Medicine. The College has been successful in recruiting
and employing researchers who have already been successful in securing both internal and external
funding. State-of-the-art labs are being created and staffed under their supervision, facilitating the growth
of research and related funding while also drawing top studenis and researchers.

Strategic Planning

in December 2010 the Board of Trustees adopted the revised mission statement and core values to guide
our strategic ptanning process. They are as follows:

Mission Statement: At Central Michigan University, we are a community committed to the pursuit
of knowledge, wisdom, discovery, and creativity. We provide student-centered education and
foster personal and intellectual growth to prepare students for productive careers, meaningful
lives, and responsible citizenship in a global society.

Core Values: To achieve our mission, we adhere to the core values of integrity, respect,
compassion, inclusiveness, social responsibility, excellence, and innovation.

In April 2011 the Strategic Planning Tear, consisting of faculty, staff and students, was charged to write
the institutional vision statement, determine the broad strategic initiatives, identify the strategic priorities,
suggest action plans to achieve those priorities and then specify the measurable outcomes to track
progress. During the year the team held multiple engagement meetings with students, faculty, staiff,
alumni and community members. These meetings were used to gather input for the development and
refinement of draft vision statements and ptiorities. The team will share the fourth draft of these
documents with the stakeholders in the fall of 2012. The President, Cabinet and Council of Deans will be
responsible for finalizing the action plans and allocating the financial and human resources needed to
accomplish the strategic priorities. This plan is expected to be completed on or before March 1, 2013.

Academic Priorities

The university has a longstanding tradition of enhancing student learning and success and contributing to
the discovery and dissemination of knowledge. To help enhance this culture, a comprehensive review of
academic programs has been conducted to determine how the university can better focus on advancing
academic excellence and quality. This review and its continued implementation will build on the
university's commitment to student learning and student success and in so doing, make the university
more responsive to the needs of our students and the communities we serve.

Review and evaluation of service units in the academic division has provided information to help increase
the quality of services and the efficiency of services being provided to students and faculty.

Enrollment Management

Under the leadership of the Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services, the enrollment and
admissions team is developing an aggressive, evidence-driven, long term approach to attracting and
retaining students for many years to come. The university sees the need for a coordinated and vigorous
enrollment management plan as the university moves into a future that is expected to have declining
levels of Michigan high schoot graduates.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Central Michigan University

CMU Research Corporation

CMU Research Corporation (CMURC) is a singte point of contact for startups and established businesses
who want to harness the intellectual, technological, and material resources of Central Michigan University
to grow their ideas and their businesses. CMURC recently partnered with Mid-Michigan Community
College to provide critical resources to smalt businesses by providing services ranging from development
of business plans to assistance in securing financing. This venture demonstrates that CMU is a
community partner in spurring economic development activities in order to graduate and retain more
Michigan residents and improve our state’s economy and future development.

USING THE ANNUAL REPORT

The university's financial report includes three financial statements: the Statements of Net Position, the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows.
These financial statermnents are prepared in accordance with the GASB Statement.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

The Statements of Net Position include all assets and liabilities. The Statements of Net Position are
prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the
services are provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service,
regardless of when cash is exchanged. Net position, consisting of the net amount of the assels, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, is one indicator of the current financial
condition of the university. Assets and liabilities are generally measured using current values.
Investments are stated at fair value, and capital assets are stated at historical cost less an allowance for
depraciation.

A three year summarized comparison of the university's assets, liabilities and net position {shown in
millions} at June 30 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Current assets $ 1534 § 1500 % 148.5
Noncurrent assets

Capital assets, net 433.5 435.8 416.5

Other 203.4 291.6 230.6

TOTAL ASSETS 880.3 877.4 798.6

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 116 7.0 8.4

Current liabilities 83.9 79.1 81.0

Noncurrent liabilities 166.9 170.3 178.7

TOTAL LIABILITIES 250.8 249.4 250.7

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 641.1 § 635.0 $ 545.3

CURRENT ASSETS

Current assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts, inventories and prepaid expenses. Current assets totaled $153.4 million at June 30, 2012,
$150.0 million at June 30, 2011, and $149.5 million at June 30, 2010. The $3.4 million increase in current
assets in 2012 consists of an increase of $9.2 million in cash and cash equivalents, a decrease of $1.6
million in accounts receivable (refer to Note 3 to the financial statements for details), a $0.5 million
decrease in pledge receivables and a decrease of $0.9 million in State Building Authority receivables.
The state appropriations receivable decreased by $2.2 million and the Charter Schools accounts
receivable decreased by $0.9 million. Receivables that had been at a second third party collection
agency were written off as bad debt and referred to the State Department of Treasury for collection. The
university terminated its contract with this second agency. The receivable write-off of the second referrals
was approximately $1.8 milion. The $0.5 million increase in current assets in 2011 consisis of a
decrease of $0.7 million in cash and cash equivalents, an increase of $1.0 million in prepaid expenses, an
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

increase of $1.9 million in pledges, of which $0.4 million was related to CBAF, and an increase of $0.8
million in the State Building Authority receivable. The receivable increase was offset by a decrease of
$2.8 million in Charter Schools accounts receivable.

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Noncurrent assets include restricted cash and cash equivalents, endowment investments at fair value,
loans receivable net of the alfowance for doubtful accounts, long-term investments, and capital assets.
Noncurrent assets totaled $726.9 million at June 30, 2012, $727.4 million at June 30, 2011, and $647.1
miflion at June 30, 2010.

Capital Assets

During 2012, capital assets decreased $2.3 million, due 1o a net increase of $32.1 miltion in capitalized
construction project costs, land improvements, equipment, less $11.0 million in write-off of electronic
jibrary subscriptions, and $23.4 million in depreciation. Refer to Note 4 to the financial statements for
details regarding capital assets. While in 2011, capital assets increased $19.2 million, due to a net
increase of $42.1 million in capitalized construction project costs, land improvements, equipment and
library materials less $22.9 million in depreciation.

Endowment Investments

During 2012, endowment investments decreased $4.0 million as a result of a change in investment
managers and unfavorable market conditions. Investment income for 2012 is comprised of a $6.9 million
decrease in market value within the investment portfolio, $1.4 million of investment income net of bank
fees, and $2.1 million realized gain. Earnings distributed from endowments and annuities, adjusted for
present value, for spending was $3.3 million, which were offset by gifts received for endowments of $2.5
million and a change in cash on hand of $0.2 million. During 2011, endowment investments increased
$19.7 million primarily due to a favorable change in market conditions. Investment income for 2011 is
comprised of an $18.0 million increase in market value within the investment portfolio, $1.5 million of
investment income net of bank fees, and $2.1 miflion realized loss resulting from a change in investment
managers. Earnings distributed from endowments and annuities, adjusted for present value, for spending
was $3.0 million, which were offset by gifts received for endowments of $4.3 million and a change in cash

on hand of $1.0 million.
Other Long-term Investments
During 2012, other long-term investments increased $5.7 million. There was an increase in unexpended

capital projects and operating stabilization funds offset by an unfavorable change in market conditions of
$2.3 million. While in 2011, other long-term investments increased $41.6 million as a result of a $15.1

million favorable change in market conditions and an increase in unexpended capital projects and

operating stabilization funds.
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

During 2012 deferred outflows increased by $4.6 million due to a $3.1 million change in the market value
of hedging instruments and $1.5 million change resulting from the defeasance of bonded debt. Refer to
Note 6 to the financial statements for detail regarding hedging instruments.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities consist of accounts payable, unearned revenue, deposits and the current portion of the
long-term obligations payable within the next twelve months. Current liabilities totaled $83.9 million at
June 30, 2012, $79.1 million at June 30, 2011, and $81.0 million at June 30, 2010. In 2012 the current
liabilities increased $4.8 million, primarily due to spending on the graduate student housing and Anspach
renovation projects. In 2011, the current liabilities decreased $1.9 million, primarily due to a $2.7 million
decrease in Charter School liabilities and a $0.3 million increase in unearned revenue.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities consist of long-term debt and other obligations for which the principal is due more
than one year from the balance sheet date. Included is the Retirement Service Award program, the
federal portion of the Perkins Loan program for students, accrued compensated absences, and bonded
debt. Noncurrent liabilities totaled $166.9 million at June 30, 2012, $170.3 million at June 30, 2011, and
$178.7 million at June 30, 2010. Refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for the detail regarding the
change in long-term debt, hedging instruments, and other obligations. Refer to Note 7 to the financial
statements for the details regarding the Relirement Service Award program. During 2012, noncurrent
liabilities decreased by $3.4 milfion primarily due to a reduction in outstanding bond principal of $4.4
million, an increase of $3.1 million in liabilities related to hedging instruments, and a decrease in
retirement fund liabiliies of $1.9 milfion. During 2011, noncurrent abilities decreased $8.4 million,
primarily due to a reduction in bond principal of $6.6 million and a decrease of $1.4 million in the liability
relating to hedging instruments. '

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between university total of assets and deferred outflows of
resources and the total of liabiiities and deferred inflows of resources. Total net position is $641.1 miltion
at June 30, 2012, $635.0 million at June 30, 2011, and $545.3 million at June 30, 2010. The university's
net position (shown in millions) at June 30 are summatrized as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Invested in capital assets $ 4335 §$ 4358 $ 416.5
Debt related to capital assets (149.9) {154.4) (160.7)
Deferred outflow on defeased debt 1.5
Net invested in capital assets 285.1 281.4 255.8
Restricted for: '
Nonexpendable 37.3 35.2 31.2
Expendable 39.0 41.8 30.0
Unrestricted 279.7 276.6 228.3
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6411 $ 6350 $ 545.3

Invested in capital assets represent the university's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets. Net position invested in capital assets increased $3.7 million. The university’s continued
dovelopment and renewal of its capital assets in accordance with its fong-range capital plan accounts for
the increase.

Restricted nonexpendable net position represents the historical value of gifts to the university's
permanent endowment funds.

Restricted expendable net position is restricted by outside parties or law and includes net appreciation of
permanent endowments and funds received which are restricted for operations, facifities and student loan
programs.

Unrestricted net position represents those balances from operational activities that have not been
restricted by parties extemal to.the university, such as donors or grant agencies. This includes funds that
have been designated by the governing board for specific purposes, including funds functioning as
endowment, as well as amounts that have been contractually committed for goods and services, which
have not yet been received. At June 30, 2012, approximately $74.8 miliion ($96.5 million at June 30,
2011) of the unrestricted net position relate to capital projects in various stages of planning and
completion. Another $40.3 million ($34.3 million at June 30, 2011) relate to debt stabilization and
insurance reserves, $15.4 million ($17.7 million at June 30, 2011) relate to unrealized gains, $49.0 million
{$21.8 million at June 30, 201 1} relate to contractual commitments, $69.8 million ($73.9 million at June
30, 2011) relate to normal working capital balances maintained for departmental and auxiliary enterprise

activities, and $30.3 million ($32.6 million at June 30, 2011) refate to funds functioning as endowment.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued) '

Central Michigan University

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present the revenues earned and
the expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating. The
financial reporting model classifies state appropriations and gifts as nonoperating revenues. The
utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as capital assets, is reflected in the financial statements as
depreciation, which amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life. A summarized
comparison of the university’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position (shown in millions} for the
years ended June 30 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition, net $ 2152 § 208.0 $ 191.7
Grants and contracts 12.7 14.6 11.7
Auxiliary enterprises, net 75.0 75.1 71.8
Other operating revenues 18.6 18.4 i8.4
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 3215 316.1 293.6
OPERATING EXPENSES 421.2 381.6 3727
OPERATING LOSS {99.7) (85.5) {79.1)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ‘
State appropriations 68.1 80.1 80.1
Other nonoperaling revenues 39.4 71.7 50.3
interest on debt (6.5) (6.5) (7.4).
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES 101.0 145.3 123.0
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUES 1.3 79.8 43.9
OTHER REVENUES
Capital appropriations 2.6 4.2
Capital grants and gifts 2.8 3.6 4.4
Additions to permanent endowments 2.0 37 1.7
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 4.8 9.8 - 10.3
INCREASE IN NET POSITION 6.1 89.7 54.2
NET POSITION
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 635.0 545.3 4911
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 641.1 § 635.0 $ 545.3

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 totaled $321.5 million,
$316.1 million and $293.6 million, respectively. Gross tuition for fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011,
and 2010 were $255.4 million, $244.3 million and $221.8 million, respectively. Scholarship allowances for
fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $40.3 million, $36.3 million and $30.1 million,
respectively,

Tuition
Tuition during 2012, before scholarship allowance, increased by $11.1 million and increased by $22.5
million during 2011. These increases relate to the new tuition rates which applied only to students who

entered the university in the fall of 2008 or after. Eligible returning undergraduate students remained on
the CMU Promise.

Auxiliary Enterprise

Auxiliary enterprise operating revenues during 2012, before room and board discount, increased $0.6
million. Auxiliary enterprises include residence halls, apartments, food services, intercollegiate athletics,
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MANAGENMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Central Michigan University

2

university bookstore, university press, parking services, energy facility, telecommunications, information
technology, and events center. These operations are intended to be self-supporting. During 2011,
auxiliary enterprise operating revenues, before room and board discount, increased $4.2 million.

Analysis of Grants and Conftracts

Grants and conlracts include all restricted revenues made available by government agencies as well as
private agencies. Grant revenues are recorded only to the extent the funds have been expended for
exchange fransactions. Non-exchange revenues are recorded when received or when an eligibility
criterion has been met. During 2012, there was an increase in federal sources of $0.2 million from
various agencies. There was a decrease in the state sources of $0.9 million. Awards from other non-
governmental sources decreased by $1.2 million. During 2011, there was an increase in federal sources
of $1.7 million from various agencies which includes $1.0 million of American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act funds. There was an increase in the state sources of $0.2 million. Awards from other non-
governmental sources increased by $1.0 million.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses include compensation and benefits, scholarships and fellowships, utilities, supplies,
operation and maintenance of plant expenses and depreciation. Interest expense is classified as a

nonoperating expense.

A comparative summary of the expenses (shown in millions) for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Operating
Compensation and benefits $ 2451 $ 233.1 § 2286
Supplies and other 914 83.1 78.3
Operation and maintenance of plant 382 18.9 21.9
Depraciation 23.4 22.9 222
Scholarships and fellowships 23.1 23.8 21.7

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 421.2 3816 3727

Nonoperating
Inferest 6.5 6.5 7.4
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 427.7 $ 3881 $ 380.1

e
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

2

A comparative summary of the expenses by natural classification for the year ended June 30, 201'2,
excluding component unit expenses is as follows:

Scholarships and

Fellowships 5% Interest Expense 2%
e o

Depreciation 6%

Operation and
Malntenance of
Plant 9%

Benefits
26%

Supplies and other
21%

During 2012, compensation and benefit expenses increased $12.0 million. Of this increase, the university
compensation increased 5.6% and benefits increased 3.7% primaiily as a result of annual and one-time
increases and an increase in the number of filled positions. University supplies and other, including cost
of goods sold increased 10.0%. Operation and maintenance of plan expenditures increased 100.0%
primarily due to non-capitalized infrastructure improvements and a write down of electronic library
materials. During 2011, compensation and benefit expenses increased $4.8 million. Of this increase,
compensation Increased 1.9% as a result of annual increases for centain employee groups, reduced by
an increase In unfilled positions. The related university employee benefits increased 2.6%. University
supplies and other, including cost of goods sold, increased by $0.8 million.

A comparative summary of the expenses by functional classification (shown in millions) for the years
ended June 30 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
instruction $ 1585.1 36 % $ 1491 38 % $ 1444 38 %
Research 9.9 2 7.5 2 7.5 2
Public Service , 192 4 176) 4 173 4
Academic Support ' 304 7 27.4 7 25.9 7
Student Services 16.7 4 17.5 5 17.2 4
Institutional Support* 26.0 8 24.2 & 30.5 8
Scholarships and Fellowships 23.0 6 22.6 6 20.6 5
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 38.0 9 18.9 5 21.9 6
Auxiliary Services® 7941 19 73.8] 19 64.6 17
Student Loan Provision, Cancellation 041 0.1 0.1
Depreciation 23.3 5 228 8 22.2 6
Other 0.1 0.1 05 1.
interest Expense 8.5 2 6.5 2 7.4 2

Total Expenses by Function®* $ 4277 100% $ 3881 100% $ 3801 100 %

*Note: Information Technology moved from Institutional Support fo Auxiliary Services during fiscal year 2011,
**Note: Component unit expenses are not shown on the above reponi.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
Central Michigan University

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) consist of state appropriations, gifts and pledges net of allowance,
© jnvestment income including realized gains and losses, Federal Pell grant program and other
nonoperating revenues less interest on debt-financed capital assets.

‘During 2012, nonoperating revenue decreased $44.3 million. State appropriations decreased $12.0
million due to a 15% reduction from the State of Michigan. Investment income increased $0.5 million.
Realized gains increased $7.3 million but were offset by unrealized losses which increased $42.4 million.
Gifts and pledges increased $1.8 million. Federal Pell grant program revenue decreased $0.4 million.
Other nonoperating revenue increased $0.9 million. During 2011, nonoperating revenue increased $22.3
million. Investment income increased $5.0 million offset by a change in realized losses of $3.4 million.
Unrealized gains increased $16.3 million. Gifts and pledges decreased $0.3 million. Interest on debt-
financed capital assets decreased $0.9 milfion. Federal Pell grant program revenue increased $3.6
million due to an increase in Iimits as well as eligible students. Other nonoperating revenue increased
$0.2 million.

OTHER REVENUES

Other revenues consist of capital appropriations received from the State Building Authority of Michigan,
capital granis and gifts, including pledges and additions to permanent endowments. A gift received by .
the university, where a donor has specified that only the investment earnings from that gift can be
expended for the purpose designated by the donor, is classified as a permanent endowment. The
principal cannot be expended. Endowment gifts do not include pledges. Other revenue in 2012
decreased $5.1 million. Capital appropriations decreased $2.6 million. Additions to permanent
endowments decreased $1.7 million. Other revenue in 2011 decreased $0.4 million. Capital
appropriations decreased $1.6 million. Capital grants, gifts and pledges decreased $0.8 million.
Additions to permanent endowments increased $2.0 million.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The Statements of Cash Flows present the information related to cash inflows and outflows summarized
by operating, capital and noncapital financing and investing activities. its primary purpose is to provide
relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the university during the year. A
comparative summary of the statements of cash flows (shown in millions) for the years ended June 30 is

as follows:
2012 2011 2010

Cash received from operations ' $ 241 $ 3207 % 2849
Cash expended for operations {385.0) (362.1) (346.5)

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES {60.9) {41.4) {51.6}
Net cash provided by noncapital financing aclivities 109.4 119.1 114.3
iNet cash used by capital financing activities (39.3) (63.3) - (37.4)
Net cash provided (used) by investing aclivities (25.1) 18.1

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9.2 {0.7) 43.4
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year ‘ 64.3 65.0 21.6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF THE YEAR $ 735 § 643 §$ 85.0

During 2012, cash received from operations increased $3.4 million. The change reflects an increase of
$5.3 million from tuition, an increase of $1.1 million from auxiliary and other educational activities, and a
decrease of $2,7 million in repayments on loans. Granis and contracts decreased $1.3 milfion. in 2011,
cash received from operations increased $25.8 million. The change reflects an increase of $20.0 million
from tuition, an increase of $3.2 million from grants and coniracis, an increase of $0.5 million from
auxiliary and other educational activities, and an increase of $3.3 million in other receipts. Payments on
loans decreased $0.6 million.
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_ MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
i Central Michigan University

2

During 2012, cash expended for operations increased $22.9 million. Compensation and benefits
increased $10.6 million and noncapital operating expenses Increased $10.4 million. Other payments
increased by $1.2 million. Loans increased $1.2 million and scholarships. In 2011, cash expended for
operations increased $15.6 million. Compensation and benefits increased $5.5 million. Noncapital
operating expenses increased $8.6 million. Scholarships and fellowships increased $1.9 mitlion.

During 2012, net cash provided by noncapital financing activities decreased $9.7 million, primarily due to
a $9.8 million decrease in state appropriations, a $1.7 million decrease in private gifts for endowment
purposes, a decrease of $0.4 million of Federal Pell grant program revenue offset by an increase in
operating gifts of $1.3 million and an increase in other nonoperating revenue of $0.9 million. In 2011, net
cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $4.8 million, primarily due to a $2.0 million
increase in private gifts for endowment purposes, an increase of $3.6 million of Federal Pell grant
program revenue offset by a decrease in operating gifts of $0.5 million and a decrease in state
appropriations of $0.5 million.
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During 2012, net cash used by capital financing activities decreased $14.0 million due o the completion
of major capital construction projects. During 2011, net cash used by capital financing activities increased
$15.9 million due to the increase in capital construction projects in process.

During 2012, net cash used by investing activities decreased by $25.1 million, primarily due to
unfavorable market conditions and the liquidation of investments due to a change in investment
managers. While in 2011, net cash provided by investing activities increased by $43.2 million, primarily
due 1o more favorable market conditions.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Central Michigan University

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Central Michigan University (the “University”)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012. We did not audit the financial statements of the Central
Health Advancement Solutions (CHAS), which present all the balances and activity reported in the
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
report thereon has been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
CHAS, is based on the report of the other auditors. The University and the discretely presented

component unit collectively comprise the basic financial statements. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the University's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audits. The financial statements of the University as of June 30, 2011 were
audited by other auditors, whose report dated August 29, 2011 expressed an ungualified opinion on those
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Ametica and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements aré free of material misstaiement. The financial statements of the
Central Health Advancement Solutions were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred o
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Central Michigan University and its
component unit as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in financtal position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the University has a change in reporting entity for
reporting a component unit. The Central Health Advancement Solutions is now reported as a discretely
presented component unit; in the prior year it was blended.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the
University early adopted GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 85, /tems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These statements introduce and define those slements as
a consumption of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an
acquisition of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. The
standards also incorporate deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the
definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net
position, rather than net assets. In accordance with the standards, the University has modified the
presentation of the statement of net position and has reported deferred outflows of resources from a
refunding of debt at June 30, 2012 in accordance with the standard.
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To the Board of Trusiees
Central Michigan University

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 20,
2012 on our consideration of Central Michigan University’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and
other matters for the year ended June 30, 2012. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide opinions on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the resulis of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis, as identified on pages 1 through 11, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, econormic, ot historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses 1o our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

7444& f M, PLLL

Kalamazoo, Michigan
September 20, 2012
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Central Michigan University

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
State appropriations receivable, SBA
State appropriations receivable, operations
State appropriations receivable, Charter Schools
Inventories
Cther assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Endowrment investments
Loans receivable, net
Other long-term invesiments
Capltal assets, net
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
and gain on defeased debt

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Unearned revenue

Deposits

Current portion of long-term obligations
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt, hedging instruments, and other obligations
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable
Scholarships, fellowships and research
Expendable
Scholarships, fellowships and research
Instructional department uses
Loans
Capital projects

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See notes to the financial statements.

JUNE 30
2012 2011

73,533,272 $ 64,329,194
22,692,994 24,722,000
947,993

12,383,438 14,569,456
35,461,203 ' 36,379,115
7,103,665 7,047,825
2,265 333 1,963,442
153,439,905 149,959,025
6

81,608,146 85,648,910
6,692,316 6,733,758
204,980,313 199,315,215
433,552,236 435,796,700
726,833,011 727,494,589
880,272,916 877,453,614
11,579,392 7,002,415
62,580,805 58,980,680
12,191,890 12,206,652
1,498,152 742,707
7,605,128 7,251,459
83,875,975 79,181,498
166,843,132 170,254,531
166,843,132 170,254,531
250,719,107 249,436,029
285,158,353 281,337,414
37,268,879 35,260,652
19,964,621 23,650,375
9,782,560 8,085,787
1,142,062 1,157,460
8,152,479 8,916,511
279,664,247 - 276,611,802
641,133,201 $ 635,020,001
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Central Michigan University
E@ YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
5 2012 2011
REVENUES
& OPERATING REVENUES:
Tuition $ 255422975 $ @ 244,324,286
@ Less: Scholarship allowances 40,276,016 36,366,713
% Net {uition 215,146,959 207,957,573
- Federal grants and contracts 6,739,774 6,568,099
% State and local grants and contracts 3,033,322 3,805,872
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 2,977,040 4,162,263
% Sales and services of educational activities 18,655,846 18,420,263 ‘
Auxiliary enterprises {net of room & board allowances
% of $8,249,305 in 2012 and $7,448,604 in 2011) 74,968,831 75,128,997
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 321,521,772 316,133,167
% EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES:
B ,
Compensation:
i Faculty 89,122,447 84,461,590
Staff 77,559,456 73,251,893
Benefils 63,690,444 61,400,279
Student 14,697,329 13,906,628
Scholarships and feilowships 23,147,798 23,647,851
Utilities 8,951,843 9,010,223
Supplies and other 82,613,407 74,146,184
Operation and maintenance of plant expenses 38,187,461 18,914,057
Depreciation 23,352,899 22,860,354
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 421,223,084 381,639,059
OPERATING LOSS (99,701,312) {65,505,892)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 68,128,993 80,162,300
Giits and pledges {net of allowance} 6,815,689 5,064,173
Investment income {net of investment expense) 1,622,752 36,220,659
Interest on capital assets related debt (6,498,197} (6,461,493}
Federal Pell grant program 29,776,466 30,201,036
Other nonoperating revenues 1,161,701 218,929
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 101,007,404 145,345,604
INCOME BEFORE OTHER REVENUES 1,306,092 79,839,712
& OTHER REVENUES
Capital appropriations 2,632,443
@ Capital grants and gifts 2,828,488 3,544,486
| Additions to permanent endowments 1,978,620 3,711,155
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 4,807,108 9,888,084
Eg . INCREASE IN NET POSITION 6,113,200 89,727,795 g
NET POSITION ™~
Bl NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 635,020,001 545,292,205 §
QL
6 NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 641,133,201 § 635,020,001 %:
(5]
i) g
=
[EH
4 See notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — DIRECT METHOD

Central Michigan University

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition
Grants and contracis
Payments to suppliers
Payments for utilities
Payments to employees
Payments for benefils
Payments for scholarships and feflowships
Loans issued to students
Coliection of loans to students
Auxiliary activities
Sales and services of educational activities
Other receipts (payments)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations
William D. Ford direct lending receipts
William D. Ford direct lending disbursements
PLUS loan receipts
PLUS joan disbursements
Federal Pell grant program
Cther nonoperating revenue
Gifts for other than capital purposes
Gifts for endowment purposes
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt
Capital appropriations
Capital grants and gifts received
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt and leases
interest paid on capital debt and leases
Insurance proceeds / (receivable)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Income on investments, net
Purchase of investments

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-END OF THE YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES) TO NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcite operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities
Depreciallon expense and loss on disposal of capital assels
Ghange in assets and liahilities:
Receivables, net
inventories
Other assels
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deposits
Unearned revenus
Retirement service award program
Compensated absences
Loans to students
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

$

$

$

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

2012 2011
216,530,738 $ 211,232,071
12,813,717 14,175,747
(105,881,697} (95,412,225)
(8,951,843) {9,010,223)

(181,294,185)
(63,165,277)

(171,118,435)
(62,750,999)

(23,147,798) (23,697,851)
994,414 {192,231)
(1,143,460} 91,816
74,721,085 73,727,649
18,946,545 18,807,780
(1,367,634) 2,654,601

(60,845,415)

(41,392,300)

70,315,011 80,095,377
153,642,631 159,030,250
(153,642,631)  (169,080,250)
35,201,738 32,769,671
(35,291,738) (32,769,671)
29,776,466 30,201,036

1,161,701 218,929
6,186,315 4,934,767
1,978,620 3,711,155
709,418,113 110,161,264
209,394
1,801,183
4,882,772 1,814,066
(33,363,529) (42,408,693)
(6,574,033} {6,590,000)
{6,198,961) (6,093,862)
1,677,385 (1,863,147)
(39,366,972) (53,340,453)
572,562,475 650,651,647
10,780,470 3,013,112
(583,344,599)  (678,759,972)
{1,654) {25 ,005,213)
9,204,072 (666,702)
64,329,200 64,995,902
73,633.272 $ 64,328,200

(99,701,312) $

(65,505,893)

35,607,992 23,144,221
792,689 4,210,199
(55,840) 201,649

(301,891) (1,035,144)
4,355,571 (2,126,979}
(14,761) 299,136

(1,883,266) (499,269)

504,449 20,195
(149,0486) {100,415)
(60,845,415) $___(41,392,300)

Note: General Revenue Bonds of $23,015,000 were issued to defease $20.9 mitlion of debt, resulting in a deferred

outfiow of $1.5 million. See Note 6.

See notes o the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Central Health Advancement Solutions

a

JUNE 30
2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 4,196,273 $ 2,846,432
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance .
for doubtful accounts of $156,882 and $161,565 in 2011 426,036 530,503
Cther receivables 976,602 1,216,788
Prepaid expenses and other assets 252,053 483,865
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,850,964 5,061,588
ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED:
By the Board of Trustees 115,481 113,856
Under professional liability funding arrangement-
held by ihe frustee 1,464,609 1,516,051
TOTAL ASSETS WHOSE USE 1S LIMITED: 1,580,090 1,629,707
Medical education funding receivables, less allowance
of $4,089,044 in 2012 and $400,202 in 2011 435,680 4,071,786
t easehold improvements, furniture, and equipment, net 809,007 930,652
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,675,741 $ 11,683,633
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 287,242 § 294,755
Cther liabilities 13,003 19,764
Other accrued liabiliies 31,752 26,112
Payroll and related liabilifies 835,811 1,515,170
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,167,808 1,855,801
Estimaled professional liabifity under self-insurance 723,362 1,401,786
Deferred revenue 1,007,807 857,835
Payable to hospitals 3,636,108
Notes payable to hospitals 3,495,701
Payabls to CMU 431,655
TOTAL LIABLITIES 3,330,532 11,247,229
NET ASSETS
" Unrestricted 5,326,924 417,119
Temporarily restricted 19,285 19,285
TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,345,209 436,404
TOTAL LIABLITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,675,741 $ 11,683,633

See Notes 1 and 11 to the Central Michigan University financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Ceniral Health Advancement Solutions

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Member hospitals
Net patient service revenue
Interest income
Professional fiabifity fund
Contracts and other revenue

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Employee henetits
Recruiting '
Facility and equipment
Consumable supplies
Educational supplies and services
Consulting and contractual services
Communications
Educational conferences and traval
Grant expenses
Other expenses
Professional liability insurance expense
Depreciation
Provision for bad debts
Professional fiability expense
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
Unrestricted revenues and other support over (under)
operating expenses
Distribution to member hospitals representing excess funding
Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments whose use is limited
Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

NET ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Equity transfer of net assets
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
2012 2011

16,202,785 $ 14,508,306
3,964,275 4,974,491
11,449 9,015
370,952 32,973
6,800,853 6,022,120
27,350,314 24,847,905
17,025,765 16,108,745
3,098,948 3,186,092
162,455 193,041
1,215,710 1,151,543
361,646 361,233
385,675 972,446
1,177,537 1,452,765
155,648 161,526
691,823 738,152
11,302 10,529
273,922 233,309
645,433 339,434
375,540 353,407
334,384 384,372
381,648
25,915,878 25,328,242
1,434,436 (480,337)
(2,901,287)

(21,332) 246,393
1,413,104 (3,135,231)
417,119 7,048,051
3,495,701 (3,495,701)
5,325,924 417,119
19,285 19,285
5,345,209 $ 436,404

! Financial Report 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Central Michigan University

NOTE 1--ORGANIZATION, BASIS OF PHESENTATEON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Crganization

Central Michigan University (the university) is an institution of higher education and is considered to be a
component unit of the State of Michigan because the Governor of the State of Michigan appoints its
Board of Trustees (the board). Accordingly, the universily is included in the state's financial statements
as a discrete component unit. Transactions with the State of Michigan relate pnmanly to appropriations
for operations, appropriations for Charter Schools, grants from various state agencies, State Building
Authority (SBA) revenues and payments to the state retirement program for university employees. The
university has six alfiliated organizations that were evaluated in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporiing Entity: Omnibus, which
the university adopted July 1, 2010. Each organization is described below as well as the impact that it
has on the university's financial statements:

o Central Health Advancement Solutions {CHAS) is a Michigan nonprofit corporation established
January 28, 2011 and is organized on a non-stock membership basis. The sole member of the
corporation is the Board of Trustees of Central Michigan University. The purpose for which the
corporation is organized and to be operated is exclusively charitable, educational and scientific
within the meaning of Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and
corresponding provision of any subsequent federal tax laws. The corporation is to be
administered solely for the benefit of the Sole Member by providing, directly or indirectly,
assistance and benefit, financial or otherwise, to the Sole Member through whatever means are
determined by the Board of Directors of the corporation to be appropriate. Effective January 1,
2011, CHAS entered intc a Member's Agreement that provides a 90% membership interest in
CMU Medical Education Pariners whose purpose is to integrate medical education, research and
service primarily for the training of medical residents and other medical related personnel. In
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, CHAS is discretely presented in the
university's financial statements {refer to pages 18 and 19 for CHAS financial statements). The
June 30, 2012 audited financial statements for CHAS can be found at: www.cmich.edu.

« The CMU College of Business Administration Foundation (CBAF} is a Michigan nonprofit
corporation established January 28, 2011 and is registered as a charitable trust under the
Charitable Organizations and Solicitations Act {COSA), MCL 400.271 et seq. and the Supervision
of Trustees for Charitable Purposes Act, 1961 PA 101, MCL 14.251 et seq. (STCPA). The
purpose for which the corporation is organized and to be operated is to solicit, receive, hold and
administer and dishurse cash/non-cash investment funds to support the charitable, educational
and scientific purposes of CMU's College of Business Administration. In accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, CBAF is blended into the university’s financial statements
because CBAF provides seivices entirely to the university. The June 30, 2012 audited financial
statements for CBAF can be found at; www.cmich.edu.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
& Central Michigan University
Condensed financial information for CBAF is provided below:
il ' CMU College of Business Administration Foundation (CBAF)
2 Condensed Statements of Net Assets
JUNE 30
t 2012 2011
Bl ASSETS
Current assets $ 760,612 § 459,092
E‘% TOTAL ASSETS 760,612 459,092
LIABILITIES
5 | Other liabilities 5,500 1,350
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,500 1,350
NET ASSETS
Restricted - expendable 755,112 457,742
B TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 755,112 $ 457,742
H
o5 CBAF Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
% January 28, 2011
Year Ended to
% June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011
OPERATING EXPENSES
] Supplies and other $ 7,338 $ 1,350
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,338 1,350
& OPERATING LOSS (7,338) (1,350)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
& Gifts , 279,700 1,000
Investment income (113) 51
e TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 279,587 1,051
OTHER REVENUES
Capital grants and gifts 25,121 458,041
E@ TOTAL OTHER REVENUES 25,121 458,041
: INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 297,370 457,742
3 NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 457,742
i NET ASSETS AT END OF PERIOD $ 755,112 § 457,742
& 4 CBAF Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
i . January 28, 2011
Year Ended to
i - June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011
: Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activitles 5 252,127 § 1,051 ~
t Net Cash Used by Capital Financing Activities (86,950} 100,000 &
2 Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 42) | £
' Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 165,177 101,008 Ty
[g CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - j‘_:;
i BEGINNING OF PERIOD 101,009 s
}{{g CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - é
END OF PERIOD $ 266,186 $ 101,009 | &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

Central Michigan University

* The CMU Foundation {Foundation} Is a Michigan nonprofit corporation established during fiscal
year 1998. The purpose for which the corporation is organized and to be operated is o solicit,
collect, receive and administer funds to provide support for the cbjectives and purposes of the
university. There were insignificant assets and no liabilities as of June 30, 2012 and 2011. In
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, the Foundation is blended into the
university’s financial statements because the Foundation provides services entirely fo the
university. Thers was no activity to be reported. ’

o The Central Michigan University Research Corporation {CMURC} was formed as an independent
501(c)(3) nonprofit corporations on February 15, 2002. The corporation’s sole member is Central
Michigan University. The purpose for which the corporation was formed is to solicit, collect,
receive and administer funds exclusively for the support of the scientific, literary and educational
programs of the university as permitied 1o be carrled on by an organization exempt from federal
income taxation. The university contributes $500,000 annually in support of this endeavor. Fiscal
year 2012 is the eleventh year of the commitment. At .June 30, 2012, and 2011, the net positions
of CMURC were approximately $844,000 and $645,000, respectively. In accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, CMURC is considered a component unit of the university
and the operations of the entily should be discretely presented in the university's financial
statements because there is a financial henefitburden and the blending criteria of GASB
Statement No. 61 are not met. However, the university has excluded the amounts from the
tinancial statements overall due to insignificance.

e The Charter Schools Development & Performance Insiitute d/b/a National Charter Schools
Institute (NCSH), a Michigan nonprofit corporation, was formed on November 29, 2001, The
institute incorporated as a private tax-exempt corporation with the primary geal to facilitate the
development and performance of charter schools in Michigan and throughout the nation, and to
pursue multiple related objectives in support of Charter Schools. There are two classes of
members of the corporation, Category A and Category B. The Category A members consist of
persans who are the president or members of the Board of Trusiees of Ceniral Michigan
University. Category B members of the corporation consist of individuals serving as members of
the Board of Trustees of the corporation. The university transferred $500,000 to the NCSI for the
years ended June 30, 2012, and 2011, At June 30, 2012, and 2011, - the net positions of the
NCS| were approximately $1,660,000 and $1,060,000, respectively, In accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, the NCS| is considered a component unit of the university
and the operations of the entity should be discretely presented in the university’s financial
statements because there is a financial benefitburden and the blending criteria of GASB
Statement No. 61 are not met. However, the university has excluded the amounts from the
financial statements overall due to insignificance.

o CMU Charter Schools are nonsectarian public schools of choice that operate with freedom fraom
many of the regulations that apply to traditional public schools. The “charter” establishing each
such school is a performance coniract detailing the school's mission, program, geals, students
served, methods of assessment and ways to measure success. In accordance with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, the CMU Charter Schools are considered a related
organization because there is no financial benefit/burden to the university nor can the university
impose its will on the charter schools. According to GASB Statement No. 61, only note disclosure
is required for related organizations,

Therefore, the financial statements include the operations of the university, CBAF, and the Foundation,
collectively known as the university's financial statements, based on the evaluation of the entities and
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61.

Change in Reporting Entity

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the University changed its method for repoiting CHAS, a
component unit. Previously CHAS was blended into the University’s financial statements. Beginning this
year the university is discretely presenting CHAS, because the services are being provided to those
outside the University, rather than to the University itself. As a result, the University’s net assets as of July
1, 2011 were decreased by $436,404. This change has impacted the amount reported as the University’s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

change in net assets by reducing the year ended June 30, 2011 by $436,404. CHAS did not have any
activity in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resource measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The statements incorporate all fund groups utilized internally
by the university. These statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB.

The university early implemented GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA proncuncements. The
objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and
financial guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30,
1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations
*  Accounting Principles Board Opinions

*  Accounting research bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants [AICPA),
Committee or Accounting Procadure

The university follows the "business-type” activities requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, and
GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statemenis-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for
Public Colleges and Universities. This statement requires the following components of the university’s
financial statements:

* Management's discussion and analysis

» Basic financial statements including a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows for the University as a
whole :

o Notes to the financial statements

GASB Statement No. 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and
universities and requires that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the
following four net asset categories:

= Invested in capital position, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and outstanding principal balances of debt aitributable to the acquisition, construciion or
improvement of those assets.

o Reslricted:
Nonexpendable — Net position subject to externally imposed constraints that they be
maintained permanently by the university. Such assets include the university’s permanent
endowment funds.

Expendable — Net position whose use by the university is subject to externally imposed
constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of the university pursuant to those constrainis or
that expire by the passage of lime.

¢ Unrestricted: Net positions that are not subject to externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted net
positions may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the board or may
otherwise be limited by contractual agresments with outside parties. Substantially all unrestricted
net positions are designated for academic, research and outreach programs and initiatives,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

a

postemployment benefits, operating and stabilization reserves, capital projects and capital asset
renewals and replacements.

This statement also requires the university to report revenues net of discounts and allowances. Gift and
grant revenues are recognized at the later of the pledge date or when the eligibility requirement of the
gifts and grants are met. In addition, direct lending is not reported as federal revenue and scholarship
expenditures but is instead treated as an agency transaction.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The university and its component units define cash and cash equivalents as highly fiquid, shori-term
investments that bear little or no market risk and are stated at fair value.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent unspent cash held in trust accounts related to bonded
debt.

Both cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents are included in cash and cash
equivalents on the Statements of Cash Flows.

Pledges

Financial support to the university and CBAF in the form of pledges is received from business enterprises,
foundations and individuals. Revenue from gift pledges is recorded only when there is an unconditional
promise to pay and all eligibility requirements, including time requirements, have been met. Contributions
to permanent and term endowments are not recognized as assets until actually received by the university.

Inventories

inventories are primarily stated at actual cost, using the first-in first-out method.
Investments

All investments are stated at fair value,

Capital Assets

Capital assets for the university are stated at cost or, when donated, at fair market value at date of gift.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method from the date of acquisition. University building
additions and improvements with a cost in excess of $50,000 are capitalized if the life of the building is
extended; equipment with a cost in excess of $5,000 and a useful life greater than one year is capitalized,
and software in excess of $250,000. Assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life for the
respective asset. When assels are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts. The university does not capitalize certain works of art or
historical treasures {(except for certain museumn collections) that are held for exhibition, education,
research or public seice.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

Depreciation is provided for physical properties on a straight-line basis over the estimated ussful life of
the property as follows:

Classification Life

Buildings > $100,000 40 years
Buildings < $100,000 10 years
Infrastructure 20 years
Equipment — Digital TV 20 years
Leasehold Improvements 10 years
Land Improvements 8 years
Equipment 3-8 years
Library Books 8 years
Vehicles 4 yoars
Software 3-5 years

Compensated Absences

University employees earn vacation and sick leave benefits based, in part, on length of seivice. Vacation
pay is fully vested when earned. Upon separation from service, employees are paid aceumulated
vacation based upon the nature of separation {death, retirement or termination). Certain limitations have
been placed on the hours of vacation that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at
death, retirement or termination. Unused hours exceeding these limitations are forfeited.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of advance ticket sales for athletic events; summer school tuition not
earned during the current year and contract and sponsored program advances.

CHAS Estimated Professional Liability

The provision for estimated self-insured medical malpractice claims is actuarially determined and includes
estimates of the costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The liability is
approximately $1.3 million at June 30, 2012 and is included in the member hospital and malpractice fund

liability.
Deferred Quiflows and Hedging Instruments

Deferred outflows and hedging instruments consist primarily of interest rate swap agreements and are
stated at fair value based on the zero coupon valuation method. The university recorded deferred
outflows and hedging instruments {noncurrent Habilities) of $10,064,753 at June 30, 2012, and
$7,002,415 at June 30, 2011. Effective June 30, 2012, deferred outflows also include $1,514,639 of gain
on the defeasance of the General Revenue Bonds Series 2002A,

Bond Issuance Costs
Bond issuance costs are expensed when incutred.
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

Operating revenues of the university consist of tuition, grants and contracts, sales and services of
educational activities and auxiliary enterprise revenues. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon
for operations are recorded as nonoperating revenues, as defined by GASB Statement No. 34, including
state appropriations, Federal Pell grant revenue, gifts and investment income. Restricted and
unrestricted resources are spent and tracked at the discretion of the recipient university department within
the guidelines of donor restrictions, if any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized when the service is prowded
Restricted grant revenue is recognized only to the extent expended.

Student Tuition

Student tuition revenues are reported net of scholarship allowances in the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Positions. Scholarship allowances represent the difference between the
stated charge for goods and services provided by the university and the amount that is paid by the
students or third parties on behalf of the students, where the university has discretion over such
eXpenses.

Auxiliary Enierprises

Auxiliary enterprises primarily represent revenues generated from University Residence Services,
intercollegiate athletics and vatious other departmental activities that provide services to the student
body, faculty, staff and general public.

CHAS Revenue

CHAS has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursements to the corporation at
amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments undet third-parly reimbursement
programs represent the difference between the corporation’s established rates for services and amounts
reimbursed by third-party payors. The corporation grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of
whom are Michigan residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Significant
concentrations of CHAS accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 include Medicare (13.1%), Blue Cross
(7.1%), Medicaid {37.9%) and other commercial insurers and self-pay (41.9%), respectively.

CHAS patient accounts receivable and revenue are recorded when patient services are performed.
Patient accounts receivable are recorded at the corporation s established rates with contractual
adjustments charity allowances, policy discounts and the provision for uncollectible accounts deducted to
arrive at net patient accounts receivable. Patient services and member hospital receivables are recorded
net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,245,926 at June 30 and $561,767 at June 30, 2011

Donor Restricted Endowmentis

Under Michigan taw set forth in the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutionat Funds Act, as adopted
in Michigan in 2009 ("UPMIFA."), the board acts in a fiduciary capacity as trustee of its endowment funds.
UPMIFA requires that the board exercise its fiduciary duties prudently and consider both the charitable
purposes and needs of the university and the purposes of the specific endowment regarding current
expenditures and preservation of the purchasing power of the funds. See Note 2 for the university
spending policy. Endowment realized and unrealized appreciation is reported consistently with the net
position categorization of the related endowment net of spending policy distributions.

Eliminations

In preparing the financial statements, the university eliminates inter-fund assets and liabilities that would
otherwise be reflected twice in the Statements of Net Position. Similatly, revenues and expenses related
to internal service activities are also eliminated from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. Student tuition and residence fees are presented net of scholarships and
fellowships applied to student accounts where the university has discretion over such expenses, while
stipends and other payments made directly to students are presented as scholarship and fellowship
expenses.

Use of Estimates

_ The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Income Taxes

~The university is a part of the State of Michigan for purposes of Internal Revenue Code Section 115, and

is an organization as described in Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3}.. The university's income
generally is exempt from federal income taxes, although income from certain activities may be subject to
taxation as unrelated business income. The component units are also exempt from income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for activities related to their exempt purposes.

Change in Accounting Principles

Effective with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the University early adopted GASB Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
and GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilifies. These statements
introduce and define those elements as a consumption of net assets by the University that is applicable to

a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the University that is applicable to a future

reporting period, respectively. The standards also incorporates deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and
by renaming that measure as net posilion, rather than net assets. in accordance with the standards, the
University has modified the presentation of the Statement of Net Position and has reported deferred
outflows of resources from a refunding of debt in June 30, 2012 in accordance with the standard.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications were made to amounts in the 2011 financial statements conform to the
classifications used in 2012, In fiscal year 2012, the university began using Operation and Maintenance
of Plant Expenses as a separate classification in the natural expense presentation on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The use of this additional classification segregates
supplies from non-capitalized equipment, library materials and other operation and maintenance of plant

expenses.

NOTE 2--CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDOWMENTS AND OTHER LONG-TERM
INVESTMENTS

Policy

The university uses the "pooled cash” method of accounting and has retained independent investment
managers to handle ali of its cash and investments. The component unils maintain interest-bearing
deposits and short-term investments with financial institutions that are insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation.

Investment policies for cash and cash equivalents, as set forth by the Board of Trusiees, authorize the
investment managers to invest in commercial paper of companies rated within the highest classification
established by not less than iwo national rating services. Investments may be made in securities of the
US Treasury and Federal Agencies, common stock, convertible bonds, convertible preferred stock, time
savings accounts and other fixed income securities deemed prudent by the investment managers. The
weighted average credit quality is to be no less than AAA for the short-term Investment pool accounts, AA
for the intermediate-term investment pool accounts and A for the long-term investment pool accounts.
The weighted average credit quality is to be no less than B for the non-invesiment grade long-term

- investment pool accounts. In addition, the minimum acceptable credit quality at the time of purchase for

individual securities shall be A for the shori-term investment pool accounts and BBB for the intermediate-

term and long-term investment pool accounts.

Policies regarding marketable securities in the endowment investments, as set forth by the Board of
Trustees, authorize the investment managers to invest in high-grade equities, bonds or other marketable
securities. The endowment income spending policy is 4.5% of the 20-guatter rolling average of the
market value of the endowment pool. During 2009, the State of Michigan adopted UPMIFA. According to
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Central Michigan University

UPMIFA, the university may appropriate for spending as much of the endowment as the Institution deems
prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which the particular endowment fund was
established, subject to evaluation of several specific factors including general economic conditions and
the fund’s purpose. Although UPMIFA allows spending of the original gift, the university's board policy
does not allow the annual spending income allocation to reduce the original gift principal. Therefore,
some of the endowments may not have distributed for fiscal year 2012. The spending policy is reviewed
periodically by the investment committee, which recommends changes to the-Board of Trustees. The net
appreciation on investmenis of donor-restricted endowments available for authorization for expenditure
approximate $13,464,000 at June 30, 2012, and $17,372,000 at June 30, 2011. The net appreciation is a
component of restricted, expendable net positions. The yields of the endowment investments were as
follows:

June 30
2012 2011
Interest and Dividends 20 % 3.7 %
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains / {Losses) {(56) % 23.0%
Total Return (3.6) % 287 %

The university and CBAF, a blended component unit, had the following investments:

Fair Market Value June 30
2012 2011
Investments:
Government Securities Backed $ 1,008,240 $ 2,510,310
Government Securities - US Sponsored 20,116,055 17,749,577
Bonds {Including Bonds, Mutuat Funds, & ETFs) 143,550,898 135,395,003
Equitios {Including Equities, Mutuat Funds, & ETFs) 105,135,395 119,470,886
Real Estate 27,492 -
Life Insurance Policies 464,088 471,294
Alternative Investmenis 14,062,925 4,970,788
Cash Equivalents-Restricted 2,203,365 4,396,273
Cash Equivalents 14,365,807 3,310,831
Cash Deposits ‘ 59,167,465 61,018,363
Total Investments 3 360,121,730 $ 349,083,325
As Reported on the Statements of Net Position
Current [nvestments:;
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 73,633,272 & 64,329,194
Noncurrent Restricted Investmenits:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 6
Noneutrent Investmenis:
Endowment Investments 81,608,146 85,648,910
Other Long-Term Investments 204,880,312 199,315,215
Total Noncurrent Investments 286,588,458 284,964,131
Total Investments $ 360,121,730 $ 349,203,325

Investments of CBAF totaling $0.3 million are included in cash and cash equivalents on the Statements of
Net Position and are comprised of cash equivalents.

Credit Risk

The university's investment policy requires that alt bond investments have a Standard and Poor’s or a
Moody's Investors Service rating of A or better. Debt investments held by the university as of June 30,
2012, that mature by June 30, 2013, were rated by Moody's with a raling of Aaa.

Interest Rate Risk
The university does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of

managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. All government
securities have a maturity of less than one year.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

i Deliberate management of the asset mix among classes of investments is a necessary and desirable

B responsibility. In the allocation of assets, diversification of investments among asset classes that are not
similarly affected by economic, political or social developments is a highly desirable objective. The

i university's general policy shall be to diversify investments within both equity and fixed income securities
so as 1o provide a balance that will enhance total return, while avoiding undue risk concentrations in any

= single asset class or investment category. Accordingly, the university did not have investments in any
one issuer that represented 5% or more of total investments at June 30, 2012, or June 30, 2011.

” .

Foreign Currency Risk

i The university's holding in foreign investments was made primarily in equities, which approximated $25.1
million at June 30, 2012, and $31.3 million at June 30, 2011, adjusted for a non-foreign investment of

$2.5 mitlion.

Custodial Credit Risk

i For deposits, custodial credit risk is present if the deposits are not covered by depository insurance and
are 1) uncollateralized; 2) collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution; or 3)
& collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in

the university's name. The carrying amount of deposits, excluding those classified as investments, was
% $59,167,465 at June 30, 2012, and $61,018,364 at June 30, 2011. The deposits were reflected in the
accounts of the banks at $64,104,543 at June 30, 2012, and $65,826,718 at June 30, 2011. Of the bank
21 balance, $63,354,209 at June 30, 2012, and $65,220,105 at June 30, 2011, was uninsured and

uncollateralized.

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party, the
university will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the

K possession of an outside party. Investments in external investment pools and in open-end mutual funds
o are not exposed to custodial credit risk becatise their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in
s physical or book entry form. The university had custodial credit risk of $37.6 million at June 30, 2012, and

B $21.5 million at June 30, 2011, in its investment porifolios primarily held by JPMorgan as the
: counterparty.

& NOTE 3--ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND LOANS RECE!VABLE
& Accounts receivable relate to several transactions including state appropriations, student fuition billings
and auxiliary enterprise sales, such as food setvice, bookstore and residence halls. In addition,
i receivables arise from grant awards, financial aid, SBA revenues and component unit activities. The
i receivables are shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts.
Accounts receivable and student loans are recorded net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of
= $2,473,134 and $186,000 at June 30, 2012, and $2,846,079 and $186,000 at June 30, 2011,
respectively.
i . . o . -
During the fiscal year, the university received approximately $201,940,000 ($203,610,000 in fiscal year
= 2011) of state appropriations, which were forwarded to fifty-eight charter schools.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Central Michigan University

Kl

June 30 .
2012 2011
Tuition, Room and Board $ 7,301,921 § 8,504,659
Contracts and Grants 1,744,580 2,058,777
Sales and Services 601,464 599,520
Insurance Proceeds 185,762 1,863,147
Pledges 9,421,655 9,898,572
Agency Activities 3,437,602 1,707,324
Total 22,692,994 24,721,989
State Appropriaticns-SBA 947,993
State Appropriations-Operations 12,383,438 14,569,456
State Appropriations-Charter Schools 35,461,203 36,379,115
Loans Receivable 6,682,316 6,733,759
Total Receivable $§ 77,229,951 $_83,352,322
NOTE 4--CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, net of depreciation, consist of the following as of June 30, 2012:
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012
Nen-depreciated capital assets: :
Land $ 12,893,727 $ 49,900 $ 12,943,827
Capitalized Collections 776,819 146,373 630,446
Construction In Progress 24,417,127 $ 1,693,393 4,327,247 21,683,273
Total non-depreciated capital assets 38,187,673 1,593,393 4,523,520 35,257,646
Depreciated capital assets:
Land Improvements 23,254,755 650,113 23,904,868
Infrastructure 14,138,957 14,138,957
Buildings 537,348,825 26,080,339 323,547 563,105,617
Leasehold Improvements 95,759 95,759
Furniture and Equipment 76,730,952 5,334,417 4,440,908 77,624,461
Library Materials 67,160,802 4,032,514 25,429,135 45,764,281
intangible Assets 924,706 924,708
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land Improvements 17,970,262 1,295,674 19,265,936
infrastructure 6,092,022 662,090 6,754,112
Buildings 194,586,546 12,741,329 138,627 207,189,248
Leasehold Improvements 48,678 8,676 58,254
Furniture and Equipment 51,045,019 4,775,447 3,567,007 52,253,459
Library Materials 51,791,693 3,734,166 14,429,135 41,006,724
Intangible Assets 511,609 134,617 646,226
Total depreciated capital assets 397,809,027 12,744,484 12,058,821 398,294,680
Capital Assets, Nel $ 435796700 $ 14,337,877 $ 16,582,341 $ 433,652,236
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Capital assets, net of depreciation, consist of the following as of June 30, 2011:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2011
] Non-depreciated capital assets: .
tand $ 12,993,727 $ 12,993,727
Capitalized Collections 795,237 § 33,013 § 51,431 776,819
Construction In Progress 30,618,707 (5,100,908} 1,100,672 24,417,127
Total non-depreciated capital assots 44,407,671 (5,067,895} 1,152,103 38,187,673
Depreciated capital assets:
Land Improvements 22,214,378 1,040,377 23,254,755
Infrastructure 13,301,264 837,693 14,138,957
Bulldings 500,677,636 36,782,288 111,009 537,348,825
Leasehold Improvemenis 95,759 895,759
Furniture and Equipment 73,078,983 5,856,434 2,204,445 76,730,952
Library Materlals 65,746,847 4,060,469 2,646,414 67,160,902
Intangible Assets 924,706 924,706
L.ess accumulated depreciation: :
Land Improvements 16,343,487 1,626,775 17,970,262
Infrastruciure 5,447,650 644,372 6,092,022
Buildings 182,585,448 12,082,066 80,967 194,586,547
Leasehold Improvements 39,102 9,576 48,678
Furniture and Equipment 48,293,121 4,754,037 2,002,140 51,045,018
Library Materials 50,829,197 3,608,210 2,646,414 51,791,693
Intanglble Assets 376,992 134,617 511,609
L‘% Total depreciated capital assets 372,124,556 25,716,908 232,437 397,609,027
- Capital Assets, Net $ 418,532,227 $ 20,649,013 $ 1,384,640 § 435,796,700

|
One of the critical factors in continuing the quality of the university's academic programs, research
4 programs and residential life is the development and renewal of its capital assels. Construction in
progress at June 30, 2012 primarily consists of the construction costs for Graduate Student Housing of
7| $8.4 million, Anspach renovation of $4.4 million, Biosciences building of $0.9 million, Mesocosm Project
of $0.8 million, and other projects, including maintenance and remodeling approximating $7.2 million.

Funds needed to complete construction projects will be provided by current unrestricted university net
5 assets or by future state appropriations, gifts, grants, SBA monies or hond funds. Funds required to
’ ' complete the projects in process approximate $146.9 million as of June 30, 2012 ($29.2 million as of June

=2 30, 2011).

I " The university entered into lease agreements with the SBA and the State of Michigan during prior fiscal

vears for the Park Library, Music Building, Dow Science il Building and the Health Professions Building.
3 The projects were financed with SBA Revenue Bonds and state appropriations. The buildings are
= recorded as asssts of the universily.

e ' . .
= The SBA bond issues are secured by a pledge of rentals to be received from the State of Michigan,
(8 pursuant to the lease agreement between the SBA, the State of Michigan and the university. During the | &
& lease term, the SBA will hold title to the facilities; the State of Michigan will make all annual lease 8
- payments to the SBA from operating appropriations; and the university will pay all operating and ioi
o maintenance costs of the facilities. At the expiration of the leases, the SBA has agreed to sell each facility o
" to the university for the sum of one dollar. &
(5]
RR &% =
83 g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Central Michigan University .
NOTE 5--ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES H
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts due at June 30 for goods and services f
received prior to the end of the fiscal year. Included is an accrual for Charter Schools of $35.5 million.
2012 2011
University Salaries and Wages $ 7,456,169 $ 7,371,122 "
University Benefits ' 1,224,791 1,204,073
University Supplies 18,433,142 14,026,370
Charter Schools 35,461,203 36,379,115
Total University 62,575,305 58,980,680
CBAF Other 5,500 ]
Total $ 62,580,805 $ 58,980,680
NOTE 6--LONG-TERM DEBT, HEDGING INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS .
Long-term debt, hedging instruments and other obligations consist of the following as of June 30, 2012:
H
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Current H
July 1, 2011 Additions Beductions  June 30, 2042 Portion
General Revenue Bonds: H
Series 1990 Capital Appreciation $ 7786286 $ 471,236%  1,820000% 6437522 8 1,787,431 y
Series 2002A Term Bonds 20,900,000 20,900,000 B
Series 2005: ,
Series Bonds _ 7,530,000 710,000 6,820,000 735,000
Term Bonds 21,675,000 21,675,000
Serles 2006
Series Bonds 9,350,000 610,000 8,740,000 640,000
Term Bonds 17,325,000 17,325,000
Series 2008A Series Bonds 36,255,000 2,625,000 33,736,000 2,675,000
Series 20094 Series Bonds 31,015,000 1,300,060 29,715,000 1,365,000 ‘
Series 2009A Unamortized Premium 2,623,000 172,000 2,451,000 172,000 f
Series 2012A Series Bonds 23,015,000 23,015,000
Total Long-Term Debt 154,459,286 23,486,236 28,037,000 149,908,522 7,374,431 i
Hedging Instrumenis 7,002,415 3,062,338 10,064,753
Compensated Absences 4,340,215 504,451 4,844 666 24,561 i
Federal Portion of Perking :
Loan Program 6,125,666 190,489 5,935,177 H
Retiremant Service Award Program 5,578,408 1,883,266 3,695,142 206,136 i
Total $ 177,505,990 $ 27,053025% 30,110,755 $ 174448260 § 7,605,128
f
f
o :
g i
i
S f
o
B f
2
i
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i
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l.ong-term debt, hedging instruments and other obligations consist of the following as of June 30, 2011:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Current
July 1,2010 . Additions Reductions  June 30, 2011 Portion

General Revenue Bonds:

Series 1990 Capital Appreciation $ 7246655 § 539,631 $° 7786286 8 1,705,142
Serles 2002A Term Bonds 20,900,000 20,900,000
Serles 2003A Term Bonds 1,675,000 $ 1,675,000
Serles 2005:
Series Bonds 8,215,000 685,000 7,530,000 710,000
Term Bonds 21,675,000 21,675,000
Saries 2006;
Series Bonds 9,940,000 530,000 9,350,000 610,000
Term Bonds 17,325,000 17,325,000
Series 2008A Serles Bonds 38,645,000 2,390,000 36,255,000 2,525,000
Seties 2000A Serles Bonds 32,266,000 1,260,000 31,015,000 1,300,000
Serfes 2009A Unamortized Premium 2,795,000 172,000 2,623,000 172,000
Total Long-Term Debt 160,681,855 539,631 6,762,000 154,459,286 7,112,142
Hedging [nstruments 8,436,026 1,433,611 7,002,415
Compensated Absences 4,320,020 20,195 4,340,215 12,127
Fadaral Portion of Perkins
Loan Program 6,401,176 275,510 6,125,666
Refirement Senice Award Program 6,077,877 150,769 650,058 5,578,408 127,190
Total $ 185916554 § 7106158 9,121,179 $ 177,505,990 % 7,251,459

GENERAL REVENUE BONDS

During the year, the university issued $23.0 million in general obligation revenue bonds with an average
interest rate of 3.484%. The proceeds of these bonds were used to advance refund $20.9 million of
outstanding General Revenue Bonds Series 2002A, with an interest rate of 5.05%. The net proceeds of
$22.4 million (after payment of $0.6 million in underwiiting fees and other issuance costs) were used to
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with escrow
agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the original bonds. As a result, the bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for the bonds has been removed from the university's long-
term obligations. The advance refunding reduced ioial debt service payments over the next 21 years by
approximately $2.5 million, which represents an economic gain of approximately $2.0 million.

On October 1, 2009, the university issued $32,265,000 in General Revenue Bonds, Series 2009. The
outstanding bonds bear an interest rate between 4.00% and 5.00% and mature in fiscal years 2013
through 2027, Proceeds from this issuance were $35,181,688, consisting of principal amount of the
bonds ($32,265,000) and net original issue premium of $2,916,688. The proceeds from the sale of the
bonds were used to refund the General Revenue Bonds, Series 1998. '

On May 1, 2008, the university issued $43,025,000 in General Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A. The
variable rate bonds mature in the fiscal years 2013 through 2033. Proceeds from this issuance were
$43,025,000 of principal. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to retire the 2002 Select
Auction Variable Rate Securities (SAVRS) Series A and B bonds. The university retained the related
swaps, and these swaps are now designated as a hedge against the General Revenue Bonds, Series
2008A as a means to fix the variable rate bond, and minimize long-term interest rate risk.

On January 1, 2006, the university issued $28,915,000 in General Revenue Bonds, Series 2006. The
oulstanding bonds bear an interest rate between 4.00% and 5.00% and mature in fiscal years 2013
through 2036. Proceeds from this issuance were $29,378,888, consisting of principal amount of the
bonds ($28,915,000), less original issue discount of $423,466 and investment earnings of $887,354. The
proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to fund the design, acquisition, construction, furnishing
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and equipping of a new College of Education and Human Services Facility, the expansion, improvement
and upgrade of university energy facilities and the infrastructure, design, acquisition, construction,
furnishing and equipping of the Beaver Island Research Station.

On January 1, 2005, the university issued $31,820,000 in General Revenue Bonds, Series 2005. The
outstanding bonds bear an interest rate between 3.375% and 5.000% and mature in fiscal years 2013
through 2035. Proceeds from this issuance were $33,182,498, consisting of principal amount of the
bonds ($31,820,000), net original issue premium of $391,927 and investment earnings of $970,571. The
proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to fund the acquisition, construction, furnishing and
equipping of two new residence hall facilities, a hall kitchen and the installation of a fire suppression
sprinkier system.

in March 2002, the university issued $44,400,000 in General Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A, and Select
Auction Variable Rate Securities (SAVRS). These bonds were used to fund new capital projects. On
February 11, 2003, the university converted $22,400,000 of the $44,400,000 to fixed rate bonds. On May
1, 2008, the variable portion of this bond was refinanced with proceeds from the General Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008A issue. The ouistanding fixed rate bonds bore an interest rate of 5.05% and mature in fiscal
years 2017 through 2033. The General Revenue Bonds issued in March 2002 were refunded by the
General Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 20712A issued April 2012.

General Revenue Bond Series 1990 are capital appreciation bonds recorded in the following table at their
accreted year-end book value. The bonds bear an interest rate between 7.30% and 7.35% and maiure in
fiscal years 2013 through 2016. The table, which follows, summarizes capital appreciation bonds at June
30, 2012.

Ultimate Maturity

Maturity Date Accreted Value Value
10-1-2012 1,787,431 1,820,000
10-1-2013 1,662,858 1,820,000
10-1-2014 1,547,360 1,820,000
10-1-2015 1,439,873 1,820,000
Total $ 6,437,522 % 7,280,000

The principal and interest on notes and bonds are payable only from certain general revenues. The
obligations are generally callable. The principal and interest (using June 30, 2012 rates) amounts due in
each of the succeeding five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as follows:

interest Rate

Principal Interest Swaps, Not Total
2013 $ 7,202,431 $§ 4,573,859 § 1,491,349 ¢ 13,267,739
2014 7,362,858 4,680,433 1,339,618 13,392,909
2015 7,452,360 4,669,039 1,183,035 13,304,434
2016 7,748,873 4,629,265 1,014,694 13,393,832
2017 4,205,000 4,087,271 953,864 9,246,135
2018-2022 24,780,000 14,160,400 4,458,876 43,399,276
2023-2027 30,960,000 12,339,082 3,813,567 47,112,649
2028-2032 39,760,000 6,429,731 1,986,871 48,176,602
2033-2036 17,986,000 1,086,588 43,5635 19,115,123
Total 147,457,622 $ 56,665,768 $__ 16,285409 $_ 220,408,699

Unamortized Premium 2,451,000
: $ 149,908,522
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HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The university has two pay-fixed, receive-variable, interest rate swaps at June 30, 2012. The objective of
these swaps is to hedge interest rate risk on the Series 2008A bonds. A description of the swaps is as

follows:

Under the March 2002 swap, the university pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 4.44% and receives
a variable payment of 67% of the London interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) (0.16158% at June 30, 2012).
The notional amount of the swap at June 30, 2012 is $22,000,000. The swap agreement matures on
October 1, 2032. The university received $3,806,000 from the counterparty which was used to terminate
the original swap with Lehman Brothers. Effective November 7, 2008, the swap agreement was assumed
by Deutsche Bank AG. The swap provisions and termination date remain unchanged.

Under the October 2000 swap, the university pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 5.49% and
receives a variable payment of the lesser of the BMA Index or 65% of LIBOR (0.1568% at June 30,
2012). The notional amount of the swap at June 30, 2012 is $11,495,000. The swap agreement matures
on October 1, 2015. The university received $756,000 from the counterpaity at the execution of the swap
agreement. The original swap agreement was with Lehman Brothers. Effective August 16, 2004, the
swap agreement was assumed by Bank One, Michigan. The swap provisions and termination date
remain unchanged.

As of June 30, 2012, the swap agreements had a total notional amount of $33,495,000 and were in a
negative position of $10,064,753 ($8,935,518) for the 2002 swap and $1,129,235 for the 2000 swap). As
fong as the variable rate portion of the swap being received by the university is less than the fixed rate
being paid, the university will continue to be in a negative position on the swap.

The pay-fixed, receive-variable, interest rate swaps are considered cash flow hedges. The change in fair
value was an increase to deferred outflows of $3,062,338 for fiscal year 2012. The fair value of
$10,064,753 ($7,002,415 at June 30, 2011) is recorded in deferred outftows at June 30, 2012,

The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero-coupon method. This method
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward
rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are then
discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due
on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2012, all hedging instruments are liabilities; therefore, credit risk is minimal, However,
should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap become positive, the university would be
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the hedging instrument's fair value. As of June 30, 2012, all of the
university's interest rate swap counterparties are rated A+ or higher by Fitch or S&P, and A2 or higher by
Moody’s. The university manages credit risk by requiring its counterparties to post collateral in certain
events. The Board is entitled to collateral from its counterparties if a net position with a counterparty is an
asset of $25.0 million or more and the counterparty is rated below AA- by Fitch or S&P, or Aa3 by
Moody's; the university is not required to post collateral. As of June 30, 2012, the university has no
collateral posted or held. The university enters into hedge agreements with multiple counterparties to
limit concentration of credit risk. As of June 30, 2012, the university has interest rate swaps with two
different counterparties and no counterparty accounts for more than 62% of ouistanding notional. The
university monitors counterparty credit risk on an ongoing basis. The university is oxposed to credit risk,
which is the risk that the counterparty will not fulfill its obligation, whenever the swap has a positive fair
value.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest payments on the university's variable rate debt will typically increase as interest rates increase.
As of June 30, 2012, all hedging instruments are pay-fixed, receive-variable, cash flow hedges. The
university believes it has significantly reduced future interest rate risk by entering into these interest rate
swaps. As interest rates increase, variable rate debt interest payments increase and net swap payments
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decrease. As interest rates decrease, variable rate debt interest payments decrease and net swap
payments increase.

Basis Risk

The variable rate debts hedged by the university's swaps are variable rate demand obiigation (VRDO)
bonds that are remarketed weekly. The university is exposed to basis risk.because the variable rate
receipts from the hedging instruments are based on a rate or index other than the interest rates the
university pays on the VRDO bonds. As these rates change, the overall synthetic rate on the bonds will
change. The synthetic rates on the swaps were 4.33% and 5.38% at June 30, 2012, when associated
with the General Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A. The university is exposed to basis risk to the degree
that variable payments on the hedged item are not offset by the variable receipts from the hedging
instrument. For the period, the weighted average interest rate on the university's variable rate hedged
debt is 0.13%, SIFMA is 0.15%, and 67% of 1-Month LIBOR is 0.16%.

Termination Risk

The university or its counterparties may terminate a hedging instrument if the other party fails to perform
under the terms of the contract. In addition, the university's swap counterparties have the right to
terminate a hedging instrument if the credit rating of the university's unenhanced, unlimited tax general
obligation bonds is withdrawn or reduced by any two of Fitch, Moody's and S&P below BBB in the case of
Fitch or S&P, or Baa2 in the case of Moody's. If such an event occurs, the university could be forced to
terminate a hedging instrument in a liability position because the variable rate bonds would no longer
carry a synthetic interest rate and the university may be required to pay an amount equal to the swap's
falr value. As of June 30, 2012, the university's unenhanced, unlimited tax general obligation bonds are
rated A+ by S&P and Aa3 by Moody's.

Rollover Risk

Rollover risk is ihe risk that a hedging instrument associated with a hedgeable item does not extend to
the maturity of that hedgeable item. As of June 30, 2012, the university does not believe that roftover risk
is material.

Foreign Currency Risk

All hedging instruments are denominated in US doflars and thersfore the university is not exposed to
foreign currency risk. '

Market Access Risk

Market access risk is the risk that the university will not be able to enter credit markets or that credit will
become more costly. For example, to complete a hedging instrument's objective, an issuance of
refunding bonds may be planned in the future. i at that time the university is unable to enter credit
markets, expected cost savings may not be realized.

OTHER OBLIGATIONS
During fiscal year 2012, the university signed a line of credit agreement by which it can borrow up to $20
million. The university can choose from two interest rate options based on an adjusted federal funds

open rate, prime rate or LIBOR rate. There have been no draws on this line of credit as of June 30, 2012.

The Retirement Service Award program, Federal Perkins loans to students, and compensated absences
have been determined to be primarily long-term labilities.

NOTE 7--RETIREMENT PLANS

The university has established retirement plans for all qualified employees. Fuli-time faculty and
professional administrators have the option to participate in the Teachers Insurance and Annuity

~ Association/College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF) and/or Fidelity Investment Tax Exempt
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Services Company. The university contributes 12% of each qualified employee's pay to these defined
contribution plans. For new hires on or after January 1, 1996, the university contributes 10% for all
salaried employees and 8% for hourly staff. University contributions begin immediately for all employees.

Hourly employees hired ptior fo January 1, 1996, and other eligible employees choosing this option
participate in the Michigan Public School Employees’ Retirement System (MPSERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit ptan through the State of Michigan. The university contribution rate
was 3.21% of employees’ pay at June 30, 2012, and 4.11% at June 30, 2011, which was actuarially
determined by the plan’s actuaries. Employees starting between January 1, 1890, and December 31,
1995, are required to contribute between 3.0% and.4.3% of their annual pay. Effective July 1, 2010, all
active employees enrolled in MPSERS are required to contribute 3.0% of their pay toward retiree health
benefits. The university is required to pay a monthly supplemental contribution for retiree health care
benefits, which aggregated to $5,091,550 during the 2011-2012 university fiscal year ($5,213,858 during
the 2010-2011 university fiscal year). Employees hired on or after January 1, 1996 cannot participate in
MPSERS, unless they previously were enrolled in the plan at Central Michigan Universily, or one of the
other six universities that are part of MPSERS. MPSERS issues an annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained at Michigan
Public School Employees’ Retirement System, P.O. Box 308673, Lansing, Michigan 48209-8103.
Separate pension information related to the university's employees included in this pfan is not available.

Contributions and covered payroll under all plans in fiscal year 2012 are summarized as follows:

TIAA-CREF Fidelity MPSERS University Total
University Conlributions $ 10,980,476 § 2,536,254 $ 659,519 $ 14,176,249
Required Employee Contributions : 960,280 960,280
Covered Payroll 105,349,175 25,905,820 19,274,178 150,529,173
Totat Payroli 183,196,109

The university's contributions, which equaled required contributions, to MPSERS totaled $826,626 in
fiscal year 2011 and $1,108,512 in fiscal year 2010. Required employee contributions were $944,898 in
fiscal year 2011 and $433,428 in fiscal year 2010.

The university also confributes to MPSERS a percentage, which was actuarially determined by the plan’s
actuaries, of member and non-member payrolls. The university contribution rate was 13.41% for June
30, 2012, 8.73% for June 30, 2011 and 7.72% for June 30, 2010. The university's contributions, which
are not included in the table above, to MPSERS, totaled $5,588,622 in fiscal year 2012, $4,155,174 in
fiscal year 2011 and $3,473,373 in fiscal year 2010.

The university also sponsors the Retirement Service Award program covering certain employees hired
before a specific date in 1976 and certain maintenance and food service employees. The plan provides
for distributions to qualifying employees at retirement based principally on length of service and salary at
retirement. Liabilities of $2,580,158 for fiscal year 2012 ($3,151,863 for fiscal year 2011) related 1o this
program are included in the university statements of net position. The assets are included with the
university’s cash and cash equivalents. The corresponding liabilities have been included with long-term
debt, hedging instruments and other long-term obligations in the statements of net positions. During
fiscal year 2012, the university updated and recorded the expected liability for this program.

NOTE 8--CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

in the normal course of its activities, the university is a party in various legal and administrative actions.
The university has not experienced significant losses or costs. - After taking into consideration legal
counsel's evaluation of pending actions and information relative to potential future claims based on past
events, the university is of the opinion that the outcome thereof will not have a material effect on the

financial statements.
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NOTE 8--PLEDGES

The university and CBAF receive pledges of financial support from corporations, foundations and
individuals, The change in pledges has been recorded as gifts and certain pledges are recorded at
present value using a discount rate of 3%. The present value of pledges ouistanding is approximately
$9,422,000, of which approximately $494,000 relates to CBAF at June 30, 2012 and approximately
$9,899,000, of which approximately $358,000 relates to CBAF at June 30, 2011,

NOTE 10--LEASE COMMITMENTS

The university has entered into various operaling leases, primarily for off-campus degree program
facilities. The following is a schedule of the aggregate minimum rental commitment for operating leases
of real and personal property for sach of the succeeding five years ending June 30 and thereafter:

2013 § 2,845,020

2014 2,731,227
2015 2,247,380
2016 2,088,337
2017 805,777

2018-2023 255,079
$ 11,072,820

NOTE 11--LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE

The university participates with other Michigan public universities in the Michigan Universities Self-
Insurance Corporation (MUSIC). This corporation's purpose is to provide insurance coverage for errors
and omissions liability, commercial general liability, propenty loss and automobile lability. The university
has retention amounts from which it pays losses related to errors and omissions, commercial general
liability and properiy claims. The first layer of coverage for losses exceeding retention levels is a group
risk-sharing pool and is the responsibility of MUSIC. As a second layer of coverage MUSIC has
purchased excess insurance coverage through commercial ¢arriers for errors and omissions, commercial
genetal Kability, property and automobile liability claims. The payments made to MUSIC and premiums to
excess carriers reflect the liability 1isk exposures and claims experience of each university.

Effective January 28, 2011, CHAS continued its previous commercial insurance coverage for professional

medical malpractice covering the corporation for its acts and omissions. Malpractice and other claims

have been asserted against the corporation by various claimanis. Such claims are in various stages of

processing and some may be litigated. Accordingly, CHAS management and counsel cannot determine’
the ultimate outcome of the actions commenced. In the opinion of CHAS management, all such matters

are adequately covered by prior and existing insurance policies and a Self-insurance Trust Fund.
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NOTE 12--FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF OPERATING EXPENSES

The university's operating expenses by functional classification were as follows for years ended June 30:

2012
Compensalion Supplies Scholarships
and and and
Tolal Benefils Other Feliowships Ulilities Depreciation

Instruction $ 155,001,198 $ 132,208,462 §$ 22,315,002 $ 176,732 § 391,002
Research 9,594,583 3,967,341 5,825,609 160,500 1,133
Public Semvice 19,232,551 10,273,946 8,536,148 422 457
Academic Suppert 30,390,824 21,089,199 9,256,576 45,049
Student Services 16,690,880 11,827,561 4,863,319
Institutional Support 25,815,980 17,364,984 4,127,698 4,323,297
Scholarships & Fellowships 23,006,556 1,142,646 277,170 21,685,990 750
Cperaticns and

Maintenance of Plant 38,187 461 10,198,672 27,982,281 6,508
Auwxdliary Enterprises 79,397,856 36,878,308 37,372,735 (3,083,770) 8,129,993
Student Loan 79,903 17,967 61,936
Depreciation 23,352,809 . $ 23,352,899
Cther 75,055 75,055
Subtotal 421,215,746 § 245069676 § 120,633,530 § 23,147,798 $ 8,951,843 $§ 23,352,899
Component Unils 7,338
Total Operating Expenses 421,223,084
Interest Expense 6,498,197
Total Expenses § 427,721,281

2011
Compensation Supplies Schotarships
and and and ‘

. Tolal Benefits Other Fellowships Ulitities Depreciation
instruction $ 149,136,234 § 127580243 § 20,959,102 § 168,250 § 419,639 ‘
Research 7,527,978 3,557,830 3,933,646 36,500
Public Service 17,582,646 9,173,216 8,007,066 402,364
Academic Support 27,384,715 18,612,400 8,644,317 107,598
Student Services 17,563,361 12,564,968 4,997,773 600
institutional Support 24,112,408 18,913,108 1,046,403 4,152,897
Scholarships & Fellowships 22632,845 1,107,734 482,040 21,042,282 792
Operations and

Maintenance of Plant 18,914,057 8,409,264 9,498,565 6,228
Auxiliary Enterprises 73,782,659 32,493,799 35,018,336 {1,910,676} 8,181,200
Student Loan 85,742 18,970 68,772
Depreciation 22,860,354 $ 22,860,354
Qther 74,712 74,712
Sublotal 381,637,709 $ 233,438,549 § 02730732 § 23597851 &  0010,223 § 22,860,354
Component Units 1,350 =
Total Operating Expenses 381,639,059
Interest Expense 6,461,483
Total Expenses $ 388,100,552
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NOTE 13—NEW ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

In June 2012, ihe GASB issued GASBE Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions. Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their
unfunded pension benefit obligation as a liability for the first time, and o more comprehensively and
comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement alsc enhances accountability
and transparency through revised note disclosures and required supplementary information {RSl). The
university is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted. The total pension liability will be computed on a different basis than the current actuarial accrued
liability and the method of allocaling this liability to each participating employer has not yet been
determined, so the precise impact is not known. However, if we approximale the liability based on the
actuarial accrued liability and allocate based on coverad payroll, this computes 1o a liability of $72 miilion.
The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Mathematics Assistance Center
Get the math assistance you need 1o help you succeed in your classes with CMU's Mathemalics
Assistance Center (MAC). Tutors in the center wilt assist you with everything from basic algebra to

intermediate-level statistics. With help from tutors, you will Isarm how to clarify new information,
demonsirate problem-solving skills and work through example problems,

Tutoring for On-Campus Students

MAC-LIBRARY

New focation In Park Library, Room 428
+ MTH 055-233 and above
+ STA 282/382
+ PSY 211
+ SOC 200
+ BUS 300

Tutoring for other courses Is possible depending on demand and availability of tutors.
MAC-TOWERS

Originat location in Troutman Hall, Room 002

« MTH 055-132
+ MTH 217

Tips for Students

Visiting

need to schedule an appointment. Al math tutoring is on a walk-in basis.

When you arrive, a large poster will direct you to a card-swipe to sign in. If you forget your
card, write down your name, class, and the time you came in for help.

Prepare for futoring sessions by altending class, reading the textbook, reviewing your class
notes, attempting homework problems and writing down your questions before arriving.
Bring your texibook, syllabus, noles, caleulator and any attempted work with you.

Tutoring

The purposs of tutoring is to give you additional help and explanation for mathematical concepts
being taught In your courses. Tutors will help by giving expanded explanations of concepts along
wilh examples of problems common for a particular course in an attempt to help you understand

mathematics. Tutors will not help you do entire homework sets assigned by your instructor, but they

will give help on a few select problems.

You CAN expect utors to:
« Work with you as soon as possible after you arrive.
« Answer questions and help claiify new information.
+ Demonsirate problem-solving skills.
+ Work through example problems.

You CANNOT expect tutors to:

Don't wait! Visit the MAC-LIBRARY or MAC-TOWERS as soon as you need help. There is no

~CMU

CIMNFAAT HITHIGAN -
. UNRIRSIEY .

About Mathematics

* Faculty and Staff
Academic Programs

Research

- Ct'JVrVrent”Seminérsr
Support Services

Mathematics Assisfaﬁce Center -

Statistical Consul.lin'g Center
Alurani and Friends

anors and Gif!s

- 'News and E.Vem.s e

http://www.cmich.edu/academics/sci_tech/math/support_services/Pages/Mathematics%20A... 8/8/2012
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+ Do your homework assignment for you.

+ Subslitute as your instructor when you have missed class.
+ Know all the answers to every question.

+ Substitute for your own hard work.

You are welcome fo come as many hours as you wish to receive hefp. However, if you feel you
have a nead for an individual tutor, we can help you find one. Tutoring really does helpl A sludent
who attends the math center regularly has a 60% higher chance of receiving a grade C or belter in
their math course. Many students have found tutoring lo be extremely benefictal and return for more
help with other mathematics courses.

On-Campus Center Locations and Hours

For additiona! help and explanations about math concepts being taught in class, visit the MAC or
the Minl MAC:

Reggie Backer
Director
reggte becker@emich.edu

Phone: 989-774-2280
Email: MathAC@cmich.edu

MAC-LIBRARY MAC-TOWERS

Troutman Hall, Room 002
New Locatton!

Park Library, Room 428
Monday through Thursday, 9 AM - 9 PM

MTH 055-233 and above, STA 282/382

Sunday, 5-9 PM
Monday through Thursday, 2-9 PM

MTH 066-132, MTH 217

PSY 211, SOC 200, BUS 300

Tutoring for Off-Campus Students

Tuloring seivices are available via the internet and telephone for students registered in Off-Campus
Programs courses.

« Please note that these services are available only to students taking courses through ProfEd.

Request tutoring

Tutoring is free and simple to obtain. You must register for tutoring first. Begin by clicking here to fill
out the tutoring request registration form. Please conlact the MAC toll-free at 1-800-950-1144 x2200
if you have questions with the online registration form.

After your registration with the MAC is confirmed {within 24 houes of submitling the form), you will be
added to a Blackboard shell for the MAC (the course number for the MAC is MTHO0D). Tutoring will
then be available o you onling and via telephone during regutarly scheduled MAC hours.

Courses covered include:

« MTH 105, Intermediate Algebra
+ MTH 108, Plane Trigonometry

+ MTH 130, Pre-Calculus Mathematics
+ MTH 132, Caloulus |

+ MTH 217, Business Calculus

« STA 282, Infroduction to Statistics

Tutoring for other courses is passible depending on demand and availability of tulors.

Schedufe an appointment

We prefer that you set up appointments for tutoring since we are limited to four tutors who can
provide online assistance at any given hour. Under *Announcements” on the Blackboard shell, there
is a link to a WIMBA classroom where fuloring will be held. There is also a PowerPoint guideline
that shows you how to access and use WIMBA (o communicate with tutors. Directions on how to
make an appoiniment are available here.

Whan using WIMBA for the first time, there vill be a setup wizard you should complete. You can
then communicate by typing messagss, drawing on a whiteboard with your mouse, talking into a

microphone, calling the MAC or using your own webcan. Tutors wili primarily write on the
whiteboard, allowing vou to see a problem being solved the same way you would in a classroom.

Become a Tutor

Tutors are essential to the success of the Mathematics Assistance Center, H you are interested in
becoming a tutor, you should be able to:

« Answer a student's questions thoroughtly

http://www.cmich.edu/academics/sci_tech/mathfsupport_servicesfPagesfMathematics%20A... 8/8/2012
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* Help clarify course material

+ Demonstrate problem-solving skills

« Work through example problems wilh students
+ Allend tutor training sessions as necessary

Qualifications

To become a tufor at the Mathematics Assistance Center, you must mest the following
requirements:

+ Completed coliege mathematics courses througi Calculus I

» Eamed an A or A- in the majority of your math courses OR obtained written approval from the
facully member indicated on your submitted application

+ Maintained a cumulative GPA or 3.0 or higher

Application

+ Click here to complete and submit the online application form lo become a tutor.

I addition {o the online apptication form, you need to send an unofficial copy of your transcript to
the mailing address below. Also, please ask a faculty member to complete this Student
Recommendation Form in support of yeur application.

« You should turn the Student Recommendation Form in, along with your franscript, to:

Department of Mathematics
Cenfrat Michigan University
Pearce Hall 214

Mount Pleasant, M 48859

After reviewing your submitted application and transcript, the Director of the Mathemalics
Assistance Cenler will contact you fo schedule an interview.

CMU, an AAEQ institution, strongly and actively strives 1o Increase diversity and provide equal opportunity within its community.
Copyright Central Michigan University, Mount Pleasant, Mich. 46859 | Phone 988-774-4000 | Privacy Policy

http://www.cmich.edu/academies/sci_tech/math/support_services/Pages/Mathematics%20A... 8/8/2012
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CMU Writing Center
Online Writing help as close as your computer

Writing Center help for Glohat Campus students
For many studentls, one of the most daunting aspects of college lils Is wriing a paper. Now you can get the most out of your college
writing experience with help from the CMU Wiiting Center Onlina. Get halp with:

+ Pre-writing

+ Grammar questions
+ Proper cliations

» Bibtiographies

+ Drafis

» Editing

« Polishing papers

You'll get the assistance you need in two business days for ANY paper for ANY class and the service is free to Global Campus
students,

ee Watch a 16-minute video explaining the services of the CMU WrHing Center

[

How to get help with your paper
Go to hitp:iiwebs.cmich.edufwritingcenter and send your paper to the CMU Wiiting Cenler Onkine. Within two business days,
you'll receive your paper back with constiuctive comments and suggestions on how to Improve your wiilirg.

1. Save your paper as a Microsoft WORD document {*.doc” file) or as an "rif” file. Limit of 10 pages.
2. Go to http:hiwebs.cmich.edulwritingeenter and click on the tink to the online form. Type In the User Name: writingcenter and
the Password: weonline, Fiil out the form and usa the "Browse” function te find and attach your fie,

3. Within two business days, you'll get your paper back attached as a WORD document. When yo open it, rove your mouse over

any highlighted area to read the comments. In newer versions of WORD, use "Print Layout” under View to see brackeled
comments,
. Still need more help? Make your changes and submit the paper again.

-3

5. Do il again, The Writing Center wifl provide support as long as you need it. If you are having multiple problems, sometimas they

wilt recommend an appointment o a chat sesslon rather than trylng to explaln a complex Issua via e-mail.

Pon't get frustrated with a writing assignment...get help from the CMU Writing Center Online!

Feedback | CMU Mizslon Statemant | CMU Copysight | CIU Web Postey [ GMU Privacy Policy
CMU Global Campus Central Michigan University 802 Industrial Crive Mounl Pisasant, MI 48858

CMU

CINTRAL RICRIGAN
URIVESSITY

Kifitary l Facuily l Students

Requost Information

Chat Now

Anply 1o CMU

Contact Us

Help/FAQ

Other Services

Graduate Advlsing
Undergraduate Advising
Transfer Crodit

Transfor Guldes

Prior Learning Credit

Ordor Toxthooks

Diaabitlity Services

Global Campus Library Services
{formerly QCLS)

CMU Writing Center

Call Toll Free:

800-950-1144

Foliow us on:

o

CMU, an AAEE Institution, strongly and actively slives 1o hrease divessity within its community. (s¢e www.cmich.edulaaec)

http://global.cmich.edu/student/writing-center.aspx

8/8/2012



Global Campus Library Services | CMU Global Campus Page 1 of 1

ritée/f oy AbotCMU  Future Students  Academics  Research  Athlsics  Alumal  Glving [ Eal

Cér_ii(al Michigan University's

Jobul Campus eMy

Home I Degrees & Programs ! CMU Online I Eocatlons l Course Schedules I Tuition & Financfal Ald Military ! Facuity I Students

Home > Student Services > Global Campus Eibrary Senvices

Global Campus Library Services (formerly OCLS)

CMU's nationally-recognized Global Campus Library Senices depariment provides reference and [nstructiona! assistance to Globat
Campus students and facully, Through the CMU Libraries' Documents on Demand office, studenis and Taculty also have access lo
a range of docurrent delivery and Intedibrary Joan services.

Reference Librarian Hours:

Monday - Wednesday 8am.-8pm EST Requost Information
Thursday — Friday 8am. -6pm EST Chat Now
Sunday ip.m. -6pm EST Apply to GMU
Documents on Demand Hours: Contact Us
Monday - Wednesday Bam,-7pm EST HelpfFAQ
Thursday — Friday 8a.m.-5pm, EST
Othor Services
Sunday 12p.m.-9p.m. EST
+ Graduate Advising
» Undergraduate Advising
GCLS reference libraians provide research assistance via fetephene, e-mall, web form, and live chat. Bocument delivery requests + Transfer Credit
ara typlcally processed within 24-48 hours of being submitted. + Transfer Guides
+ Prior Leaming Crodi¢
For more information « Order Texthooks

Visit the GCLS web site at http:ocis.cmich.edu to feam more about CMU's library sarvices for Global Campus students and

Disability Services

facuily. « Global Campus Library Services
{formerly OCLS)
+ Phone; (800) 544-1452 « CMU Writing Center
+ E-mall: gels@cmich.edu
+ "Ask A Librarian" Form at http:ffocis.cmich.edulreference/index.html Call Toll Free:

Join the conversation:

Feedback | CMU Mission Blatement ] CMU Copyright | CMU Veb Policy | CMU Prvacy Policy
CMU Global Campus Central Michigan University 802 Industial Drive Mount Pleasan!, Ml 48358
CMU, an ANEE instituion, slrongly and actively strives 1o increase diversidy within s community, {ses www.cmich.edulaaeo)

it s labknal Aminh aedii/carvinac/nnle aony 1127999019
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The Charles V. Park Library at Central Michigan University is the resource center for Central
Michigan University students, faculty, and staff. Its collections contain more than 1,000,000
books and other print items, 75,000 electronic books, 15,000 multimedia items, 130 electronic
periodical article databases, and electronic access to the full-text content of more than 40,000
journals. Additionally, it is a federal and state government document depository library, which
means it provides access to items published by the United States Government and the State of
Michigan. Items not owned by the library may be obtained from other institutions through the
library’s interlibrary loan service.

Access to all library resources and services for off-campus and online students and faculty is
provided by the Global Campus Library Services (GCLS) department. The six GCLS libratians
provide reference and research assistance and answer questions about the library’s services and
resources via telephone, e-mail, web form, and a chat interface. The librarians have also created
online tutorials, help sheets, and research guides to assist and instruct students and faculty in
using the library’s resources and services. Faculty may contact GCLS to arrange for an
instructional session to be presented by a librarian within an electronic classroom via Wimba.
Librarians are available to assist patrons Monday through Wednesday from 8:00 a.m. - 9:00
p.m.; Thursday and Friday from 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m,; and Sunday from 1:00 p.m. — 6:00 p.m.
(EST). They are also available to present library orientation sessions to classes on Friday
evenings and Saturdays.

The library’s Documents on Demand office offers a document delivery service that allows online
patrons to obtain print books as well as electronic copies of single book chapters, journal articles,
and more, This service is provided free of charge to students and faculty (the sole exception: the
patron has to pay the cost of shipping print books back to the campus) and requests are typically
processed within a 24 — 48 hour period. If the CMU library does not own a particular item, the
library can obtain it from another institution through interlibrary loan, The hours of operation for
Documents on Demand are Monday through Wednesday from 8:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.; Thursday
and Friday from 8:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.; and Sunday from 12:00 p.m. ~ 9:00 p.m. (EST).

As an additional service for faculty, the library offers a copyright clearance service to assist
instructors with placing items on electronic reserve within the Blackboard course shell. When an
instructor wants to use a journal atticle or an excerpt from a book as part of his instructional
matetials, he may contact the library’s Course Reserve and Copyright Services office and it will
obtain a full-text copy of the item for him, obtain one semester’s worth of copyright clearance to
use the item, pay any applicable usage fees, and then upload the material directly into the
instructor’s Blackboard course shell.



Through CMU’s Global Campus Library Services department, students and faculty have access
to a very responsive and focused suite of library services, as well as to millions of print,
electronic, and media items. All students and faculty participating in CMU’s online courses are
encouraged to take advantage of this nationally-recognized, full-service library program. For
more information, see the GCLS web site at http://ocls.cmich.edu or call (800) 544-1452,
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Academic Advising for Graduate Students

Academkc advising Is provided 10 help you identify your educalional needs, interesls and goals. Academic advisors include
profassienals from education, business and govemnment who have been tained to help you get the mos! out of your educational
experience.

Advising Is available by phone, fax and e-mail Monday through Friday from 8 a.m, - 6 pam.

Request Information
* Towork with an advisor by phone, call lofi-free (868) 774-1018.
* Face-lo-face advising appolntments are also available at your focal program cenler al regularly scheduled times. To schedule a Chat Now
face-to-face advising appoiniment, contact your local center,
* To work with &n advisor by e-mall, usa our contact form. Apply to CMU
More Informatlon Contact Us
* Online CA Exam Request Form HeIpFAQ
+ Graduate Academic Advising .
+ New Student Orfentation More Information
« Programs/Plans + Online CA Exam Request Formn
» Gotrses/Credit * Graduate Academic Advising
» Registration & Tuition * Now Student Qrientation
* Requast for Walver of HSC 520 or MGT 643/PSC 711 or CPS 603 Requlrement * ProgramsiPlans
+ Request for Waiver of MSA 600, 634 or 635 or 602 and MSA 640 Requlrements + CoursesiCradit
+ Student Records * Reglstration & Tuition
+ Degres Compfetion * Request for Waiver of HSC 520 or
+ Resources MGT 843/PSC 741 or CPS 603
Requirement

-

Requast for Waiver of }SA 600,
634 or 835 or 602 and MSA 640
Regulrements

Student Records

Dagree Completion

Rasources

-

Other Services

+ Graduate Advislng

* Undergraduate Advising

= Transter Credit

+ Transfer Guides

+ Prior Learning Credit

+ Order Textbooks

* Dlsability Services

+ Globat Campus Library Services
(formerly OCLS)

« CMU Writing Center

Call Toll Free:

866-774-1018

Joln the conversation:

htinvHalahal rmiot adiifad s alme / ok ot e
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MBS Direct

MBS Direct is CMU Global Campus® preferred bookstore pariner. CMU only provides book Information and 1SBN's 1o MBS,

Crderlng your books from MBS Direct will assure:
« the correct book [s being purchased for your class
+ timely delivery of your books

+ thatif unexpected changes occur with your coursa of the books, CMU can keep you Informed and assist you with the return of Requost Information
any books purchased and received
+ buyback value at time of purchase through Guaranteed Buyback program on top-selling book litles Chat Now

Apply to CHU

It Is Important to be prepared for class by having course books and materials In-hand prior to the start of ciass. As CMU courses

are offered on accelerated terms, it Is essentlal to have course materials and books before class begins. Contact Us
Books cannot be charged to your financlal ald. Studeats should be prepared to pay for books out-of-pocket and be relmbursed Help/FAQ
by financial ald.
Call Toll Free:
When ordering through MBS Dlrect, the following information Is required: 800 = 9 50 = 1 1 44
+ university attending

+ site {focation of class} or program Follow us on:

+ complete course Information Incfuding EPN and course name

Three Ways to Order from MBS Direct:
+ By intemnet:
o Ordering online Is the fastest and easfest method of acquiring your textbooks, Save 20% on express UPS (next day or

2nd day).
+ Soma laxts are available as e-books. E-books are indicated by "eContent Download™, Both the actual text and the e-book

ae listed fo provide studants with a cholce of which format they prefer,
+ Visil the MBS bookstore's web sile at http://bookstore.mbsdirectnetiomu.htm

+ By Phone:
o Call 800-325-3252 o place an order or for shipping rates.

+ Fax or Mall:
= Completa the Order Form and fax it to 300-499-0143.

International Shipping
UPS Is the preferred carrier for international shipments. Al DHE Global Mall and UPS Intemational shipments can be tracked and

are guaranteed,
Please Note: Customs duties, taxes, and/or other fees may be additional,
Studenis ordering course materials to be shipped internationally should call:

+ Intermmational Phone: 573-44-9170
* Intemational Fax: 573-44-5254

Feecback | CMU Rtisslon Statement | CMU Gopyright | CMU Web Policy | CMU Privacy Polley
CMU Global Campus Centrat Michigan University 602 Industrial Drive Mount Pleasant, M| 48858
CMU, an ANVEE institution, strongly and actively strives 1o increase diversity within ds community, {sea www.cnich.edufaaes)

http://global.cmich.edu/student/mbs-direct.aspx 8/8/2012
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Technical Support Academic
Career Services
Diversity
OIT Help Desk Health and Medical

Student Ombuds Office

Fechnology
Ctassrooms and tabs
Cellutar Servlces
Computer Purchasing

Our expert staff conslsts of trained Information Technology personnel as well as competent Email and Cloud Storage
student technicians. If we cannot address your technical needs directly, we will route you to Instructional Technology

the appropriate department or person, Internet Access
pprop P P Technical Support

The Office of Information Technology Help Desk Is CMU's main provider of technology
support to students, faculty, and staff, on or off-campus, 7 days a week. Whether you have
a technical question, or need help fixing a technical issue, you can count on the Hefp Desk
for asslstance.

The range of Help Desk support covers ssues related to softiware packages (such as
Microsoft Office and Microsoft Security Essentials) installed on your personal computer, to
network resources (such as Centrallink and wireless networking), as well as telephone and
cable repalr in the residence halls. We support ANYTHING - Windows or Mac, Ethernet or
wireless, phone ar cable - if It can be fixed or answered, we'll do our best to help!

OIT Technlcal Services and ResNat .
Mon-Fhurs: 7 Abt lo Midnight

Friday: 7 AM 106 PM

For advanced technical issues, CMU still has you covered! Unfortunately, the Help Desk Saturday: 12 PM to 6 PM

Ica!nnel: fix everything on flrst contact, which is where Fechnical Services and ResNet come Sunday: 12 PA (o Midnight
n

ContactUs
Working closely with the Help Desk, the Office of Information Technology Technlcal Services
division offers advanced computer repair. Whether you need assistance reinstalling your Walk-in: Park Library 101
computer operating system, removing a nasty virus from your computer, or accessing the Phone: (989} 774-3662
campus network, Technical Services is here to helpt Ghat: Click Ihe image below

Emall: helpdesk@emich.adu
Like the Help Desk, Technical Services Is staffed by IT professionals as well as expert

student techniclans that are trained to dlagnose and fix just about any Issue they encounter, ‘

i i
Technical Services charges a flat $36/hour labor rate to students needing advanced Help Desk Chat
computer repalr, plus additlonal charges for equipment (If necessary). Repair charges are {{Click fos online technlcal support :

bllled to your CMU account - no need for cashl i, Sponccred by he C4G J010 fplatve

ResNet, a division of Technical Services, also offers on-campus resldents FREE assistance
connecting to the campus network, or removing malware from your personal computer.

http://go.cmich.edu/support_services/TechnologyServices/Pages/Technical Support.aspx 8/8/2012
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CMU, an AA/EQ institution, strongly and actively strives to Increase diversity and provide equal opportunity within Its community,
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welcome to sds@cmu Academic
Academlc Advising
Central Michigan University Is committed to providing students with disabillties the academic Academic Assistance
accommodations and auxiliary alds necessary to ensure access to alt university services, English Language Institute
programs and activities. In addition te the university’s campus wide efforts to promote Libraries
access and Incluslon, students with disabilities are further accommodated based on specific Mathematics Assistance Center
individuat needs. The Office of Student Disabllity Services Is responsible for determining Student Disability Services
these accommodations. Our office Is located in Park Library, Suite 120, and is part of the ASD Online Training
Office of the Dean of Students. We provide services and assistance to enrolled students who Register for Services
are either permanently or temporarily disabled. About Us
Prospective Students

Before continuing, [t Is vital that you Typical Accommodations

first read the " It's All About You" FAQ's

message for new students. The News

B content applies to ALL college Campus Construction Updates
§ students with disabilities. Success Coaches
Writing Center

CMU has many services for students, Career Services

offered by various offices, Although Dlversity

decisions regarding disability specific Health and Medical

accomimodations are made on a case Student Ombuds Office

by case basis, view the Technotogy

Accommodations page on this website
for Information on services most often
provided, in general, for each type of

disability.

Are you a Incoming CMU student with a Documented Disabllity slanificantly affecting major
lIfe functions? Do you want access te a variety of disability specific services offared by
various campus offices?

* The registration process Is a complex and lengthy one (4-6 weeks). Start the process now.
The " Register as a Student with a Disabllity” page will walk you through the process.

CMU, an AAJEO institution, strongly and actively strives to Increase diversity and provide equal opportunity within Its community.
Copyright Central Michigan University, Mount Pleasant, Mich. 48859 | Phone 989-774-4000 | Privacy Policy

http://go.cmich.edu/support_services/academic/StudentDisabilityServices/Pages/default asnx ~ R/R/2017
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CENTRAL MICHIGAN
UNIVERSITY

March 29, 2010

To Whom It May Concern:

Ceniral Michigan Universily is established by the constitution of the State of Michigan. See the
attached Article 8, sections 4 and 6. Its powers are articulated fusther in certain Michigan
statutes (MCLA 390.551-555) copies of which are also attached.

As a constitutionally established entity, the University does not register its existence with any
state agency, There is no “registry” for public universities in Michigan. The University is not a
corporation, and so it does not register with, or report to the agency that monitors private for
profit and non-profit corporations. Its corporate status arises from the fact that the constitution
and statutes state that it is a “body corporate.”

Central Michigan University is recognized as a tax exempt entity by the federal government. Its
employer identification number is 38-6004447.

Very truly yours,

T odzP—

Manuel R. Rupe
General Counsel

MRR/dc

Enclosures

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
)ss
COUNTY OF ISABELLA )

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29™ day of March 2010.

Dolores A. Cline
Notary Public
Isabella County, Michigan

My commission expires
February 14, 2012

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
1303 WEST CAMPUS DRIVE + CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY » MOUNT PLEASANT, MICHIGAN 48852
PHONE (989) 774-3971 + FAX {089) 774-2477¢



CENTRAL MICHIGAN
UNIVERSITY

Certificate Regarding Constitution and Status Establishing
CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that T am the General Counsel for Central Michigan University,
a Michigan constitutional body corporate, and that the attached copy of Article 8, sections 4 and
6 of the Michigan Constitution, and statutes (MCLA 390.551-555), are true and complete and
contain all amendments to the date hereof.

Dated March 29, 2010

P70 Of7

Manuel K. fRTlpe et
General Counsel
Central Michigan University

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
1303 WEST CAMPUS DRIVE » CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY » MOUNT PLEASANT, MICHIGAN 48859
PHONE (989) 774-3971 « FAX (989) 774-2477



EXCERPTS FROM MICHIGAN STATUTES

390,551 Central, Eastern, Northern and Western Michigan universities; continuation;
boards of control, appointment, terms, vacancy.

Sec. 1.
The established state institutions known as Central Michigan university, Eastern Michigan

university, Northern Michigan university and Western Michigan university are continued under
these names. Each institution shall be governed by a separate 8-member board of control. The
governor shall appoint the board members by and with the advice and consent of the senate for
terms of 8 years commencing on January 1, except that the first boards shall be appointed so that
the terms of 2 members of each board shall expire on December 31, 1964, 1966, 1968 and-1970.
‘When a vacancy occurs other than by the expiration of a term, the governor shall fill the vacancy
by appoiniment by and with the advice and consent of the senate for the remainder of the

unexpired term.

390.552 Boards of control; officers, expenses,

Sec. 2.
The president of each institution is ex officio a member of its board of control without the right

to vote. A board may elect one of its members or may designate the president of the institution to
preside at board meetings. A board shall elect a secretary, a treasurer, and such other officers as
it deems necessary. Officers shall hold office at the pleasure of the board. No member of the
board shall be eligible to election as secretary or treasurer. The secretary and the freasurer cach
shall give a bond satisfactory to the board to secure the faithful performance of the duties of his
office. No officer may incur obligations or dispose of his board's property or funds, except
pursuant to a vote of the board, Board members shall receive their necessary traveling and other
expenses, to be paid out of the general fund.

390,553 Boards of control; general supervision, powers and duties.

Sec. 3.
A board of control shall have general supervision of its institution, the control and direction of all

funds of the institution, and such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by law.

390.554 Board of confrol; quorum; conducting business in compliance with MCL 15.261 et
seq.; notice of meeting; powers and duties enumerated.

Sec. 4.
A majority of the members of a board of control shall constitute a quorum. The business which

the board of control may perform shall be conducted in compliance with Act No. 267 of the
Public Acts of 1976, being sections 15.261 to 15,275 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. Public
notice of the time, date, and place of the meeting shall be given in the manner required by Act
No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976. A majority of its members may enact, amend, and repeal
rules and bylaws for the conduct of the board's business and for the government of the



institution; fix tuition and other fees and charges; appoint or remove personnel as the interests of
the institution and the generally accepted principles of academic tenure permit or require;
determine compensation to be paid for services and property; confer degrees and grant diplomas
usually conferred or granted by other similar institutions; receive, hold, and manage a gift, grant,
bequest, or devise of funds or property, real or petsonal, absolutely or in trust, which will
promote the purposes of its institution; enter into agreements not inconsistent with this act as
may be desirable in the conduct of the board's affairs; and lease or dispose of property which
comes into the board's possession, if the board does not violate a condition or trust to which the
property may be subject. The powers customarily exercised by the governing board of a college
ot university are vested in each board. The enumeration of powets in this section is not
considered to exclude powers not expressly excluded by law.

390.555 Boards of control; body corporate, actions, seal.

Sec. 5.
A board of control is a body politic and corporate. It may purchase, have, hold, possess and

enjoy to itself and its successors all the real and personal property of every kind now belonging
to its respective institution or hereafter acquired by it and may grant, alien, invest, sell and
dispose of the same; may sue and be sued, plead and be impleaded in all the courts in this state;

and may have, alter and use a seal.
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School Default Rates Page 1 of 1

%‘;J’g‘ START HHHRE School Default Rates 2-
sf GO FURTHER “i5Hd Year
: FEDERAL STUDENT AID  FY 2010, 2009, and 2008

Record 1 of 1

QOPEID School Type {Control] PRGMS FY2010 | FY2009 | FY2008
Default
Rate 34 2.7 2.3
No. in
191 136 126
Central Michigan Master's Defauit
University Degree Both No. in
002243 | 1086 Warriner Hall or Public (FFELFDL) Rei)ay 5567 5000 5447
Mt Pleasant Doctor's
Ml 48859-0001 Degree Enroliment
figures 31910 32063 33070

Percentage 174 15.6 16.5
Calculation

ENROLLMENT: To provide context for the Cohort Default Rate (CDR) data we include enroliment data (students
enrolled at any time during the year) and a corresponding percentage {borrowers entering repayment divided by
that enroliment figure). While there is no direct relationship between the timing of when a borrower entered
repayment (October 1 through September 30) and any particular enrollment year, for the purpose of these data, we
have chosen to use the academic year ending on the June 30 prior to the beginning of the cohort year (e.g., FY
2008 CDR Year will use 2008-2007 enroliment).

Current Date :  10/31/2012
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CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

[Center |Criteria

All Online Graduates {except DHA)

a) 2nd year continuation rate:

b) 3rd year continuation rate:
c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Atlanta, GA

a} 2nd year continuation rate:

b) 3rd year continuation rate:
¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Troy, Michigan

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

DeKatb County, GA

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Livonia, Ml

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Southfield, Ml

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

| Academic Year

2007-08

2008-09

2005-10

88%]

2008-09

2007-08

FTTE

T oo

2007-08
i B

2008-09

%|

2008-09

2009-10

85%|

68%

2009-10

Source: CMU Office of Institutional Research Enroliment tables extracted from SLCM.
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CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

[Center [Criteria

E£ast Lansing, Michigan

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Dearborn, Mi

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation_ rate:

Richmond, VA

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Auburn Hills, M!

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Clinton Township, Ml

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Wright-Patterson AFB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Academic Year

2009-10

78%)|

2009-10

T gl%l

2009-10

%)

2008-09

79%)|

2009-10
e 85%l

12%)

Source: CMU Office of institutional Research Enroliment tables extracted from SLCM.



CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

[center |criteria | Academic Year

Flint, Ml 2007-08 -10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: L 70%) ~92%]
b) 3rd year continuation rate:
c} 2nd year graduation rate: 4%
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Traverse City, Ml 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: - 76%]
b) 3rd year continuation rate:
c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Warren, Mi 2005-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: . 88%)

b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate;

Seymour-johnson AFB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate;
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Columbus, OH

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

McGuire AFB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

-09

2009-10

2008

 100%]

15%]

2009-10

%] 76%)

T

Source: CMU Office of Institutional Research Enroliment tables extracted from SECM.
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CMU Glohal Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

[Center  [Criteria ! Academic Year

Saginaw, Mi 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuationrate: [~ 80%| . 59%| '
b) 3rd year continuation rate:
c} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

0% 59%|  93%)

Fort Leavenworth Army Garrison
a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:
¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

-10
59%|

2009

Dalton County, GA 2007-08 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: [ 94%| ol 0%
b) 3rd year continuation rate: | 00%
¢) 2nd year graduation rate: %) 100%]
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Fort Hamilton Army Garrison 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: o 84%| 0 85%| 0 91%|

b} 3rd year continuation rate:
¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Andrews AFB
a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:
c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Grand Rapids, Ml
a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:
c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

2008-09 _ 2009-10
T 7o 95

T

Source: CMU Office of Instiutlonal Research Enroliment tables extracted from SLCM. p.4of8



CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

Center  |Criteria

l

Fort Gordon Army Garrison

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate;

Fort McPherson

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate;

Hickam AFB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate;
d) 3rd year graduation rate;

Penditon AFB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Ft Belvoir AEB

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c} 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Minot

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Academic Year

2008- 2009-10

: .. B

2009-10
T Z;:__O%‘,

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

L 75%)

'Z__‘ 20% I

2009-10

3%)

2009-10

. 83%|

2009-10

89%'

.:. ;.:.. = 0 % I

Source: CMU Offlce of Institutional Research Enrollment tables extracted from SLCM,

p.50f8




CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

{Canter [Criteria

|

Humber

a) 2nd year continuation rate;

b} 3rd year continuation rate;
¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Mid-Memphis

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Ft Polk

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Schofield

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Tripler

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate;
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Pentagon

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Academic Year
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

b 63% I

2009-10
T

0%

2008-10

2007-08  2008-09

77%)

0 - O%P

Source: CMIU Office of Institutional Research Enroliment tables extracted from SLCM.
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CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Completion by Center

[Center Criteria | Academic Year

Ft Myer 2007~08 2008 09 2009 10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: 0 0% - 67%|
b) 3rd year continuation rate; ;
¢) 2nd year graduation rate: - 14%|
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Ft Riley 2007 08 2008-09 2009 10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: ' : ::5'-563%|
b} 3rd year continuation rate:
¢} 2nd year graduation rate: 6%}
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Offutt 2007-08 2008 09 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: | © . 82%| o 75%|
b) 3rd year continuation rate:
¢) 2nd year graduation rate: O 0%)
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Ft Meade 2007-08 2008 09 2009-10
a) 2nd year continuation rate: | 55%]. - T7%
b} 3rd year continuation rate;
c) 2nd year graduation rate: 19%|
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Red River

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Vehicle Design Center

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

2007-08 2008-09  2009-10
————— e 0%|

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10

0%

Source: CMU Office of Institutional Research Enroltment tables extracted from SLCM.
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CMU Global Campus: Graduate Retention & Compietion by Center

[Center  [Criteria

Smyrna

a} 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate;

c) 2nd year graduation rate;
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Grand Forks

a} 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

CLARKCO

a) 2nd year continuation rate:

b} 3rd year contihuation rate:
c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Doc Hth Adm

a) 2nd year continuation rate:

b} 3rd year continuation rate:
¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

2007-08

2008-09

| Academic Year

2009-10

“B7% T

100%

T 0%|

0%

2008-09

2008-10

2007-08

%]

0%

0w

% 0%

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

R :.1'0:0% T

0%

0%

0%

0%]:

0%

2007-08

2008

Source: CMU Offlce of Institutional Research Envoliment tables extracted from SLCM.
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CMU Global Campus: Undergraduate Retention & Completion by Cente

[Center [Criteria

All Online Undergraduates

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Troy, Michigan

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Livonia, Ml

a} 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d} 3rd year graduation rate:

Southfield, Mi

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

East Lansing, Michigan

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Dearborn, Mi

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢} 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

| Academic Year

2007 08 2008- 09 2009 10

- 66%]

5%]

2009-10

. 76%]

::.':f 6__%'

2007-08

T

2009 10

- 78%)

38%|

10%] .

T 5%

24%|

2009-10

S 80%|

:5;._:.::1%'

2009-10

2009—10

o83y

Source: CMU Offlce of Institutional Research Enroliment tables extracted from SLCM,
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CMU Global Campus: Undergraduate Retention & Completion by Cente

[Center

[Criteria

| Academic Year

Auburn Hills, Mt

a} 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate;

€) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Clinton Township, M|

Flint, MI
a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b) 3rd year continuation rate:
¢} 2nd year graduation rate;
d) 3rd year graduation rate:
Warren, M!

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Saginaw, Mi

a) 2nd year continuation rate;
b) 3rd year continuation rate:

c) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

Grand Rapids, MI

a) 2nd year continuation rate:
b} 3rd year continuation rate:

¢) 2nd year graduation rate:
d) 3rd year graduation rate:

2007-08 2008-03 2009-10

1%l 83% - 68w

- ,:.:_ : 11%'

2007-08  2008-09  2009-10
B S TB%L 1%

57%

s% 11

36%

2009-10

2008-09_ .
0% 5oy

 . A OD/ZI

2009-10

= = : i 149?'

2009-10

1 56%)

% L 5‘?;'

2009-10

2007_—08
52% T

L 80% I

o

Source: CMU Office of Institutional Research Eorofiment tables extracted from SLCM.
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